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William Cass, P.E. David Rodrigue, P.E.

Commissioner Assistant Commissioner

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council May 1, 2025

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into an agreement with VNA at HCS, Inc.
(Vendor 177274), Keene, NH, for an amount not to exceed $554,000 for public transportation
services for the period July 1, 2025, through June 30, 2027, effective upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget(s), with the authority to adjust
encumbrances between fiscal years within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed
and justified:

04-96-96-964010-2916 FY 2026 FY 2027

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $277,000 $277,000

EXPLANATION

The Department's proposed FY 2026 and 2027 operating budget includes funding from the
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) §5311 Rural Area Formula Program (§5311) that provides
funds for capital, planning, and operating assistance for public transportation in rural areas with
populations of less than 50,000; these transportation services are open to the general public or
segments of the general public defined by age, disability, or low income. Public transportation may
include fixed route (with complementary paratransit service), deviated/flexible routes, and demand
response modes of service. The funds are awarded for existing and new/expansion projects.
Agencies apply for funding through a biannual solicitation in which all proposed projects are
evaluated.

VNA at HCS, Inc. is a private, non-profit organization that provides rural public transportation,
including transportation for seniors and individuals with disabilities in the City of Keene.

The Department has awarded the following funds for State Fiscal Year 2026-2027 biennium:
•  $554,000 in §5311 Rural Area Formula Program funds (Project 68033C)

JOHN O MORTON BUILDING • 7 HAZEN DRIVE • P.O. BOX 483 • CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483

TELEPHONE: (603) 271-3734 • FAX: (603) 271-3914 • TDD: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 • DOT.NH.GOV



Details relative to each transit system's evaluation and award are included in the attached §5311
summary sheet.

VNA at HCS, Inc., in conjunction with its regional partners as applicable, will provide the
remaining required non-federal matching funds. In the event that Federal Funds become
unavailable, general funds will not be requested to support this program.

The Agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the
Department will verify the necessary funds are available pending enactment of the Fiscal Year
2026 and 2027 budget. Copies of the fully executed Agreement are on file at the Secretary of
State's Office and the Department of Administrative Services, and subsequent to Governor and
Council approval will be on file at the Department of Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

William J. Cass, P.E.

Commissioner

Attachments



SFY 2026 - 2027 FTA Section 5311 TRurah Public Transportation Project Funds

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5311 Rural Public Transportation Formula funds are
eligible to support public transportation services in areas with populations of less than 50,000 (rural);
these transportation services are open to the general public or segments of the general public defined by
age, disabiiit)', or low income. Public transportation may include fixed route (with complementar)'
paratransit service), deviated/flexible routes, and demand response modes of service. Eligible projects are
limited to Operating Expenses, Administration, Capital Preventive Maintenance, and Capital ADA
Expenses specifically for public transportation in New Hampshire's rural areas. The funds are allocated
for existing and new/expansion projects. Agencies apply for funding through a biannual solicitation in
which all proposed projects are evaluated.

• Operating Expenses - 50% Federal / 50% match

o Net costs directly related to system operations such as fuel, oil, driver, dispatcher salaries,
and fringe benefits.

•  Project Administration - 80% Federal / 20% match

o Costs related to project administrative expenses such as general administrative expenses,
marketing, insurance premiums, office supplies, facilities and equipment rentals, standard
overhead rates, drug, and alcohol testing.

• Capital Preventive Maintenance (PM) - 80% Federal / 20% match.

o Costs related to all maintenance related to vehicles and non-vehicles including supplies,
materials, labor, services, and associated costs to preserve/extend assets.

• Capital Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Expenses - 80% Federal / 20yo match.

o Costs related to complementar)' paratransit services to individuals with disabilities who
cannot use the fixed-route services; a minimum of % of a mile on either side of the fixed

route.

The Department released a public notice on February 03, 2025, announcing the availability of §5311
funds. Applications for requested funding were due on March 13, 2025. The Department received
applications from six (6) rural public transit agencies, (see table below)

An evaluation committee that consisted of the Public Transportation Administrator, Transit Grants
Coordinator, and the Transportation Project Specialist, reviewed, evaluated, and scored §5311
applications by consensus based on the below criteria.

Note: Every application met the Department's criteria for inclusion in its SFY 2026 - 2027 public transit
funding plan and will be awarded separate amounts for the aforementioned transit systems. The
Evaluation criteria, scores, transit systems and respective awards are detailed in the tables below.



Evaluation Criteria Weight

Confirmed that proposed service/projects is eligible for 5311 funding - cite Circular C
9040.1H reference if new project.

V/N

1  -eZtff. Seniors and persons with disabilities have full access to the applicant's services.
Y/N

The proposed service is a continuation of existing services. (40% will be granted)
OR

New/Expanded projects only: The application details how the proposed service enhances
an existing service or addresses an NHDOT Dolicv goal foer Statewide Strategic Transit

Assessment tSSTAi.

40%

The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to operate its
service and demonstrates successful experience in providing transportation services. This
includes the applicant's compliance with relevant Federal and state regulations and
having a history of compliance with regulations and reporting requirements. New
applicants will need to demonstrate ability to comply with ETA requirements.

30%

3 1
1

■ 1

The application demonstrates an effort to involve the private sector in the delivery of
transportation services as well as involvement in and support for the project, financial
and otherwise, on the part of citizens and local government. (Note: This includes
providing evidence of public support for the project from municipal, regional,
institutional and/or private sector partners and describing your efforts to leverage funds
from these partners or other sources to support this project.)

20%

A  application shows coordination with other transportation providers in the service
m  area: public, nonprofit, and for-profil

10%

100%

5311 Applicant Transit

System

Consensus

Score

FY 2026

5311 Funds

FY 2027

5311 Funds

Two-Year 5311

Totals

Advance Transit

(AT), Wilder, VT

Upper Connecticut
River Valley &

Grafton County,
including Hanover
& Lebanon

98% $3,670,000 $3,670,000 $7,340,000

Community Action
Program Belknap-
Merrimack County,
Inc. (CAPBMCI),

Concord, NH

Concord Area

Transit

98% $980,000 $980,000 $1,960,000

Communit> Alliance
for Seacoast

Transportation
(COAST)

COAST segments
of Route 7 between

Exeter & Stratham

(rural as of 2020
Census)

96% $90,000 $90,000 $180,000

Southwestern

Community Services
(SCS)

Sullivan County
Transportation

93% $485,000 $485,000 $970,000

Tri-County
Community Action
Program, Inc.
(TCCAP), Berlin, NH

Carroll County
Transit & North

Country Transit

91% $451,000 $451,000 $902,000

VNA@HCS, Keene,
NH

(Keene) City
Express

91% $277,000 $277,000 $554,000

Totals $5,953,000 $5,953,000 $11,906,000



FORM NUMBER G-l (version 11/2021)

Subject: SFY 2026-2027 FTA Section 5311

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identiflcation and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name

NH Department of Transportation

1.2. State Agency Address

PC Box 483 & Hazen Dr. Concord. NH
03302-0483

1.3. Grantee Name

VNA@ HCS

1.4. Grantee Address

312 Marlboro St., PO Box 564, Keene, NH 03431-4163

1.5 Grantee Phone #

603-352-2253

1.6. Account Number

04-96-96-964010-2916-0

72-500575

1.7. Completion Date

June 30. 2027

1.8. Grant Limitation

$ 554.000

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Frederick Butler, Public Transportation Administrator,
Bureau of Rail & Transit

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-2565

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signi
any public meeting requirement for acceptance of th

ng this form we certify that we have complied with
s grant, including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signor 1

C£b
Grantee Signature 2

1  N/A
Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2

N/A

Grantee Signature 3

N/A

Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

N/A

1.13 State Agency Signature(s) 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

Michelle Winters, Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit

1^. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: ^ AssistedP^ttoraey G6ncnfrfOn: ^ Z<PZ^
T

1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On:

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee identifi^ in
block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly
described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to
as "the Project").

Page 1 of 3
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3.

4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5J.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

12.

8.1.

iX

8.3.

9.

9.1.

fX)VERED. Excq)( n otberwiae tpeciQcslly provided for berdn, the
OrBBtee shall perform dte Project in. and with respect to, the State of New
Hampdiire. 92.
RFPKCnVB DATE; COMPLBTION OP PROJECT.

This Agreement, end all obligations of the parties hereuoder, shall, become
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Oovemor
and Conndl of the State of New Hamp^ire if required (block 1.16), or upon 9.3.
signature by (he State Agency as shown in block 1.14 Cihe Effective Date*).
Excq>tesotbeiwisespecific^providedheretn,tbeProject,includmgellrepoits 9.4.
required by (his Agreemeot, shall be completed in US entirety prior to the dM la
block 1.7 (hereinafter refa^ to as *the Con^letlon Date").
r.RANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT; VOUCHERS;

PAYMEITr.
The Grant Amount is identified and more paiticulariy descnbed in EXHTBIT C, 9 J.
attached hereto.
Themannerol^aDdsdieduleofpaymeotsballbeassetfbrlhbEXHIBITC 10.
In accordance with (be provisions set foith in EXHIBrr C, and in considention
of the satisfhctory perfonnance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by sobp«ragnq)h 5.5 of these geni^ provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Onint Amount The State shall withhold fiom the amount othe^n
payable to the Grantee under this tubpaiagraph 5J those sums required, or
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount dull be die only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee fbr all ocpenses, of whatever nature, incurred by the
Grantee in the perfbimaoce hereof and diall be the only, and the complete, 11.
compeosatioa to the Grantee fbr the Project The State diall have no liabilities to 11.1.
the Grantee other than the Grant Amount

Notwithstanding anything In (his Agreement to the contrary, and notwidistaoding 11.1.1
unmqiected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized, 11.1.2
or actually made, heteunder exceed the Grant limitation set fnth in block 1.8 of 11.1.3
these general provisloRS. 11.1.4
COMPLIANCE BY CRAhTTgE WITH LAWS AND RKCULATIONS. In 11.1

connection with the performance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all
statutes, laws regnlatioas, and orders of fbdWal, state, county, or municipal 11.11
autborides which shall inq>ose any (4iligalions or duly upon the Oiantee, including
(be acquisition ofany and ail necessary permits aitd RSA 31-95-b.
RECORDS and ACC^OUNTS.

Between the Effhedve Date and the date seven (7) yean after the Completion
Date, unleu otbetwise required by the grant terms or the Agency, the Grantee 11.12
shall keep detailed accounts of dl expenses incurred in connectioa with the
Project, mchidittg, but not limited to, costs of administradon, transportadon.
Insurance, telqihone calls, and clerical materials and services. Such accounts
shall be supported by receipts. Invoices, bills and other similar documents.
Between ̂  Eflecdve Dr^ and the d^c seven (7) yean after the Completion 112.3
Date, unless othcnvise required by (be greni terms or (he Agency pursuant to
sub|^Sr8ph7.l,at8nytiTOduring(beGrtntee'inonnalbusiaessboon,andis 112.4
often as (be State 4«tTn»twtj the Grantee shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to matten covered by this Agreement The Grantee shall 11
permit the State to audit, examine, and rep^ucc such records, and to make audits ill.
of all contracts, invoices, materi^ payrolls, records of personnel, data (as that
term is heieioafter defined), and other Inftmnatico relating to all matten covered
by (his Agreement As used in this pangR^b, "Grantee" Includes afi persons,
natural or fictional, affiliated wifii, ccotrolM by. or under conunon ownership
with, the endty identified as the Grantee in block 13 of these provisions
PERSONNEL . 122.
The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all penonnel necessary to perfbim
toe Project The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in toe Project riiall
be qualified to perfbim such Project, and shall be properly licensed and autoorized
to i^orm such Project under all q^lkable bws. 122.
The Grantee thall not bhe, and it si^ not pennlt any snbcontiactar, ntograntee,
or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined efibit
to perform toe Project, to hire any person who has a contractual relationship with
toe State, or u4k> Is a State officer or employee, elected or appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be toe representative of the State hereunder. Intheevem 114.
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and histoer decision on any dispute, shall be final. 13.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA; ACCESS.

As used in tois Agreemort, toe word "data* shall mean all iofixmation and tomgs
developed or obttined du^ toe pcrformaitce of, or acquired or developed by
reason of, titis Agreement, Indudiiig, but not limlt^ to. all studies, rqxirts, files,
formulae, surveys, mqu, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic rq)resentati(ns,

con^wter programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.
Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date toe Grantee shall grant to
the State, or any person designated by U, unrestricted access to all data for
examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or fbr any other
purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and after the Effective Date all data, atKl any property which has been received
from the State or purchased with fbnds provided for that puqtose under tois
Agreement, ritall be the pn^>erty of the State, and shall be returned to (he State
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement fbr any reason, whichever
shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it dial! designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, dirrlr?w», distribule and otoerwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
CONDITIQNAI. NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything fa)
this Agreement to the contnuy, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitatioa, (be contmuance of paymenu hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation offimds, and In no event shall the State
be liable fbr any payrrtents hereunder in excess of such available or apprc^riated
fbnds. In toe event of a reduction or termination of those fbnds, (he State shall
have the right to withhold payment until such fbnds become avallfole, ifever, and
fh*)i have the right to torminate titis Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice ofsuch tennination.

EVENT OP DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions ofthe Grantee shall constitute
an event of defttult hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of DefbulO:
Failure to perform the Project latisfhctorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder, or
Failure to perform any ofthe other covenants and conditions of tois Agreement
Upon the occurrence ofany Event of De&ult, (be State may take any one, or more,
or all, ofthe fbllowing actions:
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Dcfhult and requiring it
to be remedied within, In the absence of a greater or lesser specificetion of time,
thirty (30) days ftmn the date of the notice; and if the Event of Defbult is not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, eflbctive two (2) days after giving the
Grantee notice oftennination; and
Give too Grantee a written notice qrediying the Event of Dctoult and saspcoding
all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of the
Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to (be Grantee during (be period
fhnn toe date of such notice until such time at the Stale determines (hat the
Grantee has cured the Event of Dclbult shall never be paid to the Grantee; and
Set offagainst any other obligation the State may owe to the Grantee any damages
the State snffen by reason of any Event of Deftmlt; and
Treat toe agreemeot as breached and paisue any ofits remedies at liw or in equity,
or both.

TERMINATION.

(d the event of any early termination of this Agreement fbr any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver to the Grant Officer, not
later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as (he Termination Report") describing in detail ̂ 1 Project Worir
performed, and toe Grant Amount enned. to and including the date of termination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the qjproval of such a Terminatioc Rqx>rt by the State dull entitle
the Onintffft to r^ve that portion of toe Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termination.

In toe event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these goiaal
provisions, (he qqjroval of stich a Termination Report by toe State shall in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and all liability ftir damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of toe Grantee's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to (be contrary, either toe State or,
except where notice defiiutt has been given to the Grantee hereunder, toe Grantee,
may termiiute tois Agreement without cause tq>on thirty (30) days ir^tten notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member ofentployee of the Grantee,
and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New Hampshire or of
the govening body of the locality or localities in which the Project is to be
performed, who exercises any fbnctioos or responsibilitiet in the review or
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14.

15.

16.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

approval of (he undertaking or canying out of such Project, shell participate in 17.2.
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest
or the interest of any corpontlon, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary Interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.
GRANTEE'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement die Grantee, its employees, and any subcontractor or cubgrantee of IS.
the Grantee are in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
DOT employees of (he State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its ofliocts,
employe^ agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees, shall have authority
to bind the State nor are tbey entitled to any of the benefits, workmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or 19.
othemiae transfer any interest in this Agreement without die prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be sub^tracted or
subgraoted by the Grantee other than as set forth in Exhibit B without (be prior
written consent ofthe State. 20.

INDEMNIFICATION. The Grantee shall defend, indemnify and bold
harmless the Stale, its ofTicers and en^iloyees, fhnii and against any and all
losses suflbred by tbe State, Its officers and en^loyees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted agtinst the State, its officers and employees, by 21.
or on bdialf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out
of (or udiich may be claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omissions of the Grantee
or subcontractor, or cubgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding
(he foregoing, notfaing herein contamed shall be deemed to constitute a waiver
of tbe sover^gn immunity of the State, which inununlty is hereby reserved to
the State, This covenant diall survive the termination of this agreement 22.
INSURANCE.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall 23.
require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project woric to
obtain and maintain in force, both for tbe benefit of the State, tbe following
insurance:

Statutory woiken' condensation and esdlcyees liability iosunoce for all 24.
employees eog^ed in the petfonoanoe of the Inject, end
General liability insurance against all claims ofbodily usuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurreoce and $2,000,000
aggr^te for bodily ipjuiy or death any one incident, and $500,000 for property
damage fai any one incident: and

Tbe policies described in subparagraph 17.1 ofthis paragraph shall be (he standard
form employed In the State ofNew Hampshire, issued by underwriters acceptable
to the State, and authorized to do business in tbe State ofNew Hampshire. C^ntee
shall fUmish to the State, certificates of insurance for ail renewel(s) of insurance
required under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to tbe expiration
date of each insurance policy.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No fUlxtre by tbe State to ettforce any provisions
hereofafier any Event ofDefhuU shall be deemed a waiver ofits rights with regard
to that Ev^ or any subsequent Event No express waiver of any Event ofDe&ult
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof No such foilure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of tbe right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any fiirther or other defhuh on the part of (he Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at foe time of malting by certified mail, postage
prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at foe addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be emended, waived or discharged only
by an instrummt in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after ̂ iproval of
such emeodmcot, waiver or discharge by tbe Governor end C^cil of the State
of New Hampshire, ifrequired or by foe signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OP AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall
be construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, end is
binding upon and inures to foe benefit oftbe parties aitd their req>ective successors
and The cqrtions and contents of the "subject" blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part ofthis Agreement or
to be used in determining the intend of (be parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit
BbTTlRE AGREEMtJirr. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original,' constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between tbe parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The sdditioQal or modifying provisioDs set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement
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VNA@HCS
EXHIBITS TO AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT A Special Provisions

EXHIBIT B Scope of Services

EXHIBIT C Budget

EXHIBIT D Vehicle List

Certificate of Good Standing

Certificate of Corporate Vote

Certificate of Insurance

FTA Certifications and Assurances

FTA Master Agreement

DDL Special Warranty - Unified Protective Arrangement

2CFRPart 200

FTA Section 5311

Social Service Documents to Include:

501 (c)
Financial Report
Board of Directors

Key Personnel and Salaries
Resumes



Revised 04/17/2025

VNA@HCS,INC
EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Al. Amend G-1 Section 2. ""SCOPE OF WORK** by adding the following:

2.1. The Grantee may change services as described in Exhibit B, Scope of Services (hereinafter the
"Services") only with the prior written agreement of the State and in accordance with applicable
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requirements.

A2. Amend G-1 Section 3. ""AREA COVERED" by adding the following:

3.1. Services may extend to adjacent states with prior written approval from the State. The State
reserves the right to require formal cost allocation measures.

A.3. Amend G-1 Section 5. ""GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS:

PAYMENT" by adding the following:

5.6. As applicable based on Federal participation ratios, the amount paid by the State to the Grantee
shall not exceed 50% of allowable operating costs less fare revenues plus 80% of allowable
administrative and capital costs. Operating, administrative, and capital costs are identified in
Exhibit C. The Grantee shall provide and document the availability of local funds sufficient to
meet the project cost more than the Grant Price Limitation.

5.7. In the event that revenues exceed the total allowable costs, said revenues in excess of total
allowable costs shall be placed in an interest-bearing account within 30 days of the Completion
Date and made available to the State upon demand.

5.8. The Grantee shall submit a request for payment to the State on a form specified by the State on a
monthly or quarterly basis, together wi^ all information to support the request Such requests for
payment shdl be properly completed and signed. Requests for payments must be for dlowable
costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 200. No requests for advance payment will be accepted by
the State.

5.9. Upon receipt of the request for payment the State shall review the request to determine the
allowability of costs. In connection with this review, the State may demand production of (and
the Grantee shall produce) and inspect any documents and records described in Section 7.

5.10. Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records required
by the State, the State shall determine the allov^bility of costs and the amount due and owing to
the Grantee and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions of this Agreement.

5.11. Final Payment. The Grantee's provision of all reports required under this Agreement is a
condition precedent to final payment

A4. Amend G-1 Section 6. ""COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS" by adding the following:

6.1. The Grantee shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment notices setting forth the provisions of the Federal Title VI non-discrimination
requirements.

6.2. The Grantee shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all qualified
applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, age, creed,
sex, or national origin.



RevUed 04/17/2025

6.3. The provisions of 2 CFR 200 shall apply to local administration of this agreement and any
subgrantee under this agreement

A.5. Amend G-1 Section 12. "TERMINATION** by adding the following:

12.5. The Termination Report must be approved by the State and the Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) prior to final payment.

12.6. Completion of Services; Payment of Price. Excepting those obligations of the Grantee which, by
the terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the completion of the
Services and upon payment of the Grant Price, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall cease and neither party shall have further recourse under the Agreement

A.6. Amend G-1 Section 9. "DATA; RETENTION OF DATA; ACCESS** by adding the
following:

9.6. The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of this
Agreement:

9.6.1 Except for its own internal use, die Grantee may not publish or reproduce such data in
whole or in part, or In any manner or form, nor may the Grantee authorize others to do so,
without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA may have either
released or approved the release of such data to the public,

9.6.2 As authorized by 2 CFR 200. the FTA reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to authorize others to
use, for Federal purposes, any work developed under a grant, cooperative agreement,
sub-grant, or third party grant, irrespective of whether a copyright has been obtmned; and
any rights of copyright to which a recipient, sub-recipient, or third party contractor
purchases ownership with Federal assistance.

9.7. It is the FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the
Grantee understands and agrees that in addition to the rights set forth in 9.6 (b) above, the FTA
may make available to any grantee or subgrantee its license in the copyright to the date derived
under thb Agreement or a copy of the data first produced under this Agreement

9.8. The Grantee shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the State and United States, their officers,
agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any liability,
including costs and expenses, resulting fiom any willful or intentional violation ofthe proprietary
rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction,
delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this Agreement.

9.9. Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to the United States under any patent or be
construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the United
States under any patent

9.10. Secfions 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 above are not applicable to material furnished to the Grantee by the
State or United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement provided that
such incorporated material is identified by the Grantee at the time of deliveiy of such work.

9.11. If the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under the project shall become
subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the State or the FTA may direct
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A.7. Amend G-1 Section 15. *'ASSIGNM£NTS/AND/SUBGRANTEES** by adding the following;

15.1 The Grantee shall cause the provisions of this grant to be inserted in all subgrants for any work
covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each subgrantee; provided,
however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to subgrantees for standard commercial
supplies or raw materials. The Grantee shall take such action with respect to any subgrant as the
State may direct as a means of enforcing sudi provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance.
The Grantee shall ensure that any subgrantee has obtained all licenses, permits or approvals
required for the performance of grant Services.

A.S. Amend G-1 by adding "DEFINITIONS'* as Section 25:

25. DEFmiTIONS

ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are incurred in die performance of the Services which
satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200.

FTA: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures and/or maps submitted to the State
detailing the scope of the public transportation program of the Grant as modified and approved
by the State.

REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation services
being provided by the Grantee. Revenues also include funds from subgrants, contracts, purchase
of service agreements, and excess matching funds that directly benefit the transportation service.

SECTION 5311: FTA Formula Grants for Rural Areas program

STATE: The State ofNew Hampshire, acting through the Department of Transportation, Bureau
of Rail and Transit.

A.9. Amend G-1 by adding "ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26:

26. ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

26.1. Ledgers Grantee and/or subgrantee shall establish and maintain ledger sheets for each budget
category. Entries shall be made and shall reflect the financial activities of the Grantee. The ledger
sheet must be in a form approved by the State. The ledger will indicate the funds remaining in each
line item of the Grant Budget at the beginning of each month. Entries shall be made on a running
basis and carried over to the following month; that is, figures will be brought forward cumulatively.
Grantee shall also prepare and submit to the State a profit and loss statement quarterly if such
information is not provided with invoices.

26.2. Accounts Receivable. The Grantee and/or subgrantee shall deposit all revenue in an interest-
bearing account with a banking institution in this State. Grantee shall prepare and maintain receipt
vouchers for all revenue. Immediately upon receipt. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall credit all
revenue to the appropriate receipt account. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall est^lish and maintain
an Accounts Receivable Ledger. The receipt number appearing in the Ledger shall correspond to
the receipt voucher number. A receipt voudier must be completed on a form approved by the State
and shall identify each component of every deposit. All appropriate supporting documents for each
deposit should attached to the receipt voucher.

26.3. Payables. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall prepare vouchers to document all expenditures of funds.
The voucher shall include the following information and shall be prepared on a form approved by
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the State: The Division and account numbers from which the funds will be drawn, the date of
expenditure, a voucher number running in sequence, and any appropriate comments supporting the
expenditure of funds (e.g., invoices and payroll vouchers). All invoices received by the Grantee
sh^l be checked for accuracy and allowabili^. Each invoice must be approved for payment by the
Grant Manager or designee. Immediately upon payment, Grantee and/or subgrantee shall make
entries to the appropriate ledger sheets documenting payment (Each subgrantee shall identify a
Grant Manager).

26.4. Voucher and Receipt Register. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall establish and maintain two
registers that will contain a running total of all payable receipt vouchers. The registers will provide
a summary of voucher or receipt numbers, amount, and purpose of action. No selfrdesignated
abbreviations are to be used.

26.5. Check Register. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall maintain a check register. This register is also
considered a book of original entry and is posted to the ledger immediately.

26.6. Time Sheet, Taxes, and Benefits. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall require each of its employees
to 1) submit weekly time reports designating work performed and time spent on such work, or 2)
be included in an indirect cost allocation plan q^proved by the cognizant Federal agency. The
Grantee shall summarize time reports by task and ̂ ply employee's rates of pay to the hours
worked. The Grant Manager shall review completed and signed time reports and cause them to be
posted to the appropriate category in the general ledger. The Grantee shall maintain records of
employee payroll and benefits and shall post this information to the appropriate category in the
genered ledger, llie Grant Manager shall ensure that all payments are on a timely basis.

26.7. Reimbursements. On a monthly basis, the Grantee shall submit a description of Grant activities,
in a format as required by the State. Should the Grantee show a profit for any month, the Grantee
shall apply the amount of profit against subsequent reimbursement requests. The Grantee shall
agree to provide information in addition to the monthly narrative at such times and in sych manner
as the State may require, and to prepare any reports which may be requested by the State including
but not limited to a final or termination report if operations cease.

26.8. Maintenance of Records. The Grantee shall keep and maintain the records, documents, and
accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The Grantee
shall maintain, and make available to the State and the FTA, records relating to complaints and
comments received from die public. In the event the State disputes the Grantee's operations or
records as submitted for payment or otherwise, final resolution shall rest with the State.

26.9. Audits and Inspections. Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date, and for a period of
three (3) years after the FTA grant is closed or the date of resolution of all matters relating to this
Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as often
as the State or the FTA may demand, the Grantee shall make avail^le to the State and the FTA or
their designees all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall
permit the State and the FTA to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits of
all contracts, grants, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, Data (as defined in G-1
section 9.1) and other information relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used in
this paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or
under common ownership with, the entity identified as fiie Grantee in 1.3 of G-1.

26.10. Independent Audit. The Grantee shall submit one audit done by one Certified Public Accountant
(CPA) for the entire project, or, as the State may require, for any part of the project upon demand.
Monies required for payment of the audit shall be set aside in the Grant Budget for that specific
purpose.

26.10.1 In the event the audit reveals that monies are due and owing to the State fix}m the
Grantee, for whatever reasons, the Grantee shall pay to the State such sums within thirty
(30) days of the audit date.
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26.11. The Grantee shall submit quarterly performance, drug and alcohol, and charter activity reports
within 30 days of the end of each quarter and shall submit any forms, information or reports
required by the State to complete the FTA's National Transit Database (NTD) reporting.

26.12. General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS). The Grantee shall generate and keep updated General
Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data and submit related data for reporting to the National Transit
Database (NTD) as required. The Grantee shall submit related data to the State upon request.

A.10. Amend G-1 by adding "PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY** as Section 27:

27. PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY. The following terms and conditions
apply to all equipment and real property purchased in whole or in part with funds provided
through this or other Agreements between ̂ e State and the Grantee:

27.1. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular 4220. IG and
future amendments, and with Buy America requirements. 49 CFR Parts 661 and 663.

27.2. All vehicles shall be purchased by the State unless the Grantee has received prior approval fiom
the State to procure vehicles.

27.3. All other equipment with a cost more than five hundred ($500) per unit shall be purchased by
the Grantee subject to the prior approval of the State.

27.4. Title to all project equipment funded or otherwise provided by the Grantee shall be in the name
of the Grantee; provided, however, that the Grantee shall give the State a security interest in all
such equipment at the time of purchase and shall execute financing statements and do all other
acts necessaiy or useful to the perfection of that interest and the renewal thereof. In connection
with the purchase of any motor vehicles pursuant to this Agreement, the Grantee shall give the
State a security interest in the motor vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take all steps
necessary to protect the State's security interest, including taking steps to identify the State as a
lien holder of such motor vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

27.5. In the event fiiat this Agreement is terminated, all project equipment and property become the
property of the State, and it is understood and agreed that le^ title to such equipment shall be
transferred to the State as soon as feasible. I^^oject equipment will be disposed of in accordance
with FTA Circular 9040.1H and the State Management Plan unless written approval is received
fivm the State.

A.U. Amend G-1 by adding "EQUIPMENT CERTIHCATION** as section 28:

28. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Grantee shall maintain a current inventory listing of
all Project Equipment and Real Property involved in this Agreement. The Grantee shall submit
to the State a certification that the Project Equipment and Real Property as referenced in Section
27, is still being used in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. The inventory listing and
equipment certification shall be supplied to the State on an annual basis.

A.12. Amend G-1 by adding "EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE*' as section 29:

29. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. The Grantee shall be responsible for the maintenance
and repair of all equipment used in the Services described in Exhibit D. The Grantee shall
maintain all such equipment at a high level of cleanliness, safety, and mechanical soundness. The
Grantee shall certify that a proper maintenance plan that meets or exceeds the original equipment
manufacturer's preventive maintenance guidelines is followed. Vehicle maintenance plans must
be approved by the Grantee's Board of Directors. All maintenance, repair and physical
improvement activities on equipment shall be conducted by the Grantee and at a location
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specified by the Grantee. The Grantee shall notify the State of any changes in this location. The
Grantee further agrees to maintain, repair, or mt^e any physical improvement to equipment as
requested by the State. The State, the ̂ A, and/or their designees shall have the ri£^t to conduct
periodic inspections for the purpose of confirming proper maintenance and repair.

A.13. Amend G-1 by adding **R£PAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS" as section 30:

30. REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS. The Grantee shall maintain a complete and up to date
record of all motor vehicle repairs and shall make such records available to the State and the FTA
upon demand.

A14. Amend G-1 by adding **VEHICLE STORAGE" as section 31:

31. VEHICLE STORAGE As applicable, with respect to any motor vehicles purchased in whole or
part under this Agreement, or maintained under this Agreement, the Grantee shall park or garage
each vehicle to ensure maximum available protection and safety for each vehicle. The Grantee
shall also ensure that each vehicle will be parked or garaged in such a manner that its daily
operations are not impaired or curtailed by conditions of weather or any other circumstances. The
Grantee shall notify the State of the location of the parking or garaging site and any relocation.

A-15. Amend G-1 by adding "TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW" as section 32:

32. TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW. The State may require participation in training courses
determined to be essential to FTA program management in this grant period and may require
participation in such training programs as it deems necessary by drivers and other employees
involved in the transportation of the public. Training may include defensive driving, passenger
assistance, emergency procedures and periodic refresher training every three (3) years. The
Grantee agrees that the State shall have the right to review the performance of all drivers who are
employed in connection with this Agreement, and to disallow the use of any driver whose
performance as a driver is determined to be unsatisfactory by the State.

A.16. Amend G-1 by adding "SAFETY REQUIREMENTS" as section 33:

33. SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. As applicable, all project equipment shall be inspected and
certified by the Department of Safety and shall meet edl applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations as required by the United States
Department of Transportation, and by the New Hampshire Department of Safety under RSA
266:72-a. in the purchase and operation of all project equipment.

33.1. As applicable, the Grantee shall provide die State with full, and prompt written notification
of any accident involving any vehicle used in its Services. In addition, the Grantee shall be
responsible to report any accident in compliance with State law. .

33.2. The Grantee shall submit to the State by February 15 of each year a report covering the
previous year (January 1 through December 31), summarizing the results of its alcohol
misuse prevention and anti-drug programs on FTA approved forms. This shall be in
compliance with 49 CFR Part 655.

33.3. The Grantee shall submit any data/documentation related to FTA's Transit Asset
Management or Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan purposes as required by
NHDOT for compliance purposes.

A.17. Amend G-1 by adding "SERVICE LIMITATIONS" as section 34:

34. SERVICE LIMITATIONS. The Grantee shall not engage in the provision Services other than
those described in Exhibit B, or outside the service area describe in Exhibit B, without the
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written consent of the State and, as t^)p[ic^le, without obtaining the appropriate operating
authority. The Grantee shall not engage in charter or school bus operations except as permitted
by 49 CFR Parts 604 and 605. respectively.

A.18. Amend G-1 by adding "GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS" as section 35:

' 35. GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS. The Grantee warrants that with respect to the Services to
be performed, it has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals which are required by any law,
order or regulation of any authority, state or federal, or which may be necessary for the
performance of the Services hereunder. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Services shall be qualified to perform such Services and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Services under all applicable laws.

A.19. Amend G-1 by adding "LABOR PROVISIONS" as section 36:

36. LABOR PROVISIONS. The Grantee agrees to adhere to the terms and conditions ofthe Unified
Protective Arrangement Section 5333fb1 of 49 USC 53 or as amended, incorporated herein for
the protection of the employees of any employer providing transportation services assisted by
this Agreement, and the employees of any other surface transportation providers in the
transportation service area identified in Exhibit B.

A.20. Amend G-1 by adding "PATENT RIGHTS" as section 37: '

37. PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discoveiy of the Grantee is conceived or
first actually reduced to practice during or under this grant, which invention, improvement or
discovery may be patentable under the laws of the United States or any foreign country, the
Grantee shall immediately notify the State and provide a detailed report. The rights and
responsibilities of the Grantee and the State with respect to such invention, improvement, or
discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable Federal laws, regulations, policies,
and any waiver thereof.

A.21. Amend G-1 by adding "BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION" as section 38:

38. BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Grantee warrants that it has not employed or
retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee,
to solicit or secure iis Agreement; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or
person, other than a bona-fide employee woricing solely for the Grantee, any fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting fi-om the
award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the State shall have
the right to annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion to deduct from the
Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.



VNA@HCS, Inc.
EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. The Grantee, VNA @ HCS, Inc., (hereinafter the "Grantee") shall provide the following public
transit service(s)

2. Fixed route, demand-responsive, and/or route deviation public transit services in the City of
Keene region, as detailed in the "Project Description" of the Grantee's application to the New
Hampshire Department of Transportation, Bureau of Rail and Transit (hereinafter "the State") for
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5311 funding, including a map of service areas and
fare structure.

3. The following terms and conditions apply to all of the public transit services provided by Grantee
pursuant to this ̂ reement:

a. The State may require the Grantee to provide additional transportation services or to
reduce transportation services provid^ under this Grant Any alterations to such
transportation services shall be submitted in writing by the Department to the Grantee.
The Grantee shall implement the alterations within thirty (30) days unless a different
timefiame is agreed to by the State and the Grantee.

b. The Grantee may request to revise transportation services, as submitted in the Grantee's
grant application to the State, to add, reduce, or adjust transportation services provided
under this Grant. Any alterations to such transportation services, including alterations for
the provision of service to special events, shall be requested in writing by the Grantee to
the State for approval at least 30 days in advance. Revisions subject to a public comment
period shall be requested at least 60 days in advance. Upon approval of the State, the
Grantee shall implement any alterations within thirty (30) days unless a different
timeframe is agreed to by the State and the Grantee.

c. The Grantee shall not change, add, or delete any route or make any fare, service, or
operating schedule adjustments without the prior written agreement of the State, except in
an emergency situation, in which case the Grantee shall notify the State no later than the
next woricing day following the day of such changes. Such emergency changes will be
valid for a maximum of five days; thereafter, the written approval of the State shall be
required to continue such emergency changes.

d. All project vehicles, including those Federally funded vehicles outlined in Exhibit D,
Project Equipment, as identified by their Vehicle Identification Numbers, as well as any
additional vehicles utilized for the project, shall be used in accordance with all applicable
Federal and State laws as well as State requirements.



VNA @ HCS, Inc.
EXHTBIT C

BUDGET

The Grant price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, is the FTA §5311
portion of the eligible project cost. Federal funds are granted as follows:

Administration $95,000 $95,000

Capital Preventive Maintenance $26,000 $26,000

Capital ADA $20,000 $20,000

Operating $136,000 $136,000

a. Funds are contingent upon Federal appropriations.

II. Not less than fourteen days prior to the submission of the Grantee's first request for FTA
Section 5311 reimbursement, the Grantee shall submit to the State a budget incorporating all
funds to be expended in the provision of services pursuant to this contract.

a. Budget revisions may be made with written approval of the State.

b. At the sole discretion of the Department, the Grantee may carry forward any
unexpended portion of the federal funds included in the Grant Price to a subsequent
agreement, if any, between the State and the Grantee.

III. The Grantee may seek reimbursement only for eligible expenses listed in the budget and
detail-of-cost form provided by the State, except for funds specifically reserved, if any, and
identified in "Specifically Programmed Funds," at the end of this Exhibit.



VNA @ HCS, INC.
EXHIBIT D

VEHICLE LIST

Transit Vehicles: 6

2016 Ford E450 16 & 2 Passenj^r Bus 1FDFE4FS4GDC56670

2016 Ford E450 16 & 2 Passeni^r Bus 1FDFE4FS5GDC56662

2017 Foni E450 16 & 2 PassenRer 1FDFE4FS3HDC33480

2017 Ford E450 16 & 2 Passenger 1FDFE4FS7HDC33479

2021 E-350 FORD Transit HO 1FDVU4XG2MKA23659

2021 Foni E450SD 1FDFE4FN0MDC17550



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, Ehivid M. Scanlan, Scca*tary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that VNAATHCS, INC. Is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 18,1981.1 further certify that

ail fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 67798

Certificate Number: 0007150094

%

Urn

0
09

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 4th day of April A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanian

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

)

I, Eric Home, of VNA at HCS, Inc. hereby certify that:

1. i am a duly elected CleridSecretary/Officer of VNA at HCS, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 19, 2023, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders was present and voting.

VOTED: That Maura McQueeney, President & CEO, Is duly authorized on behalf of VNA at HCS, Inc. to enter into
contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is
authorized to execute any and ail documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to affect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further
certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the
person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the
corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation
in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, ail such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: April 4, 2025

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Ervc Home
Title; Treasurer

Rev. 03/24/20



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATe{iaVDQ/YYYY)

1/21/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIRCATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING IN8URER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certlflcato holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(los) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an ondorsemsnL A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PROOUCCR

Dowd Agencies. LLC
14 Bobala Road
Holyoke MA 01040

limfMMlt- RR.19A1ftR7

Diane LaReche

^rtv 413-437-1062 MoV

ArvrteLit! dIaflechetSldowd.com

INSURERrSl APPORMNO COVERAOB NAICE

INSURER A: Philadetohla indemnity insurance ComDanv 18058

MSURED HOMB^EACS

Home Healthcare. Hospice & Community Services, IrK.
and VNA at HCS, Inc.
PO Box 664
312 Marlboro Street
Keene NH 03431

MSUIORe:

INSURERC:

INSURERD:

INSURER El

1NSURERP:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 551096993 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICES OF INSURANCE USTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITiON OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLiaES. UMIT8 SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

Type OP INSURANCE
M.),;aHi!,|;

ll'Mill'.Vii* POUCY NUMBER rfiaiiwilniYniilto lADTS

A X COKMeRaALOEMERALUABILriY

B 1 X 1 OCCUR
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OTHER:
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1 DED 1 X 1 RETENTION l4AiV»A 1 $

WORKERS COUPENSATtON
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3.000.000

OeSCRIPnON op OPOtAItONS / LOCATIONS / VEKICLCe (ACORD 101. AddOonal RasMrta ecAaduto, may ba attaohad If mora apaoa la ramtirad)
Certificate holder la an addltlonai Insured, per written contract

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state ofNH
Department of Transportation
PO Box 463
7 Hazen Drive
Concord NH 03302-0483

I  1

SHOULD ANY OP THE ABOVE OESCRIBEO POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DEUVEREO IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTMQRIZED REPRSSENTATIVB

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

01988<2ai5AC0RD CORPORATION. All rights rssstvsd.

The ACORD name end logo are registered marks of ACORD



ACORD.

Client#: 986155 HOMEHEA3

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATH (MkVDO/YYYY)

1/22/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

ORTANT: it the certificate holder Is an AOOmONAL INSURED, the policy(ie8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
n SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

3 Executive Park Drive, Suite 300

Bedford. NH 03110

855 874-0123

snern wmsiow

rnwwL 8bb8/4-U123
(JVC. No. Ext): ° ̂  (A/C. No);

bnem.winsiowigiusi.com

1NSUR£R(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICi

INSURER A Wesco Insurance Company 25011

INSURED

VNA at HCS, Inc

312 Marlboro Street

Keene, NH 03431

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

1R5IT
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POUCY NUMBER LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOEu OCCUR

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES Pe%

LOCPOLICYrijig? Qi
OTHER;

EACH OCCURRENCE

occumenf)

MEO EXP (Any ona perion)

PERSONAL 4 AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS. COMP/OP AGG

AUTOMOBILE UABILTTY

ANY AUTO
OWNtU

AUIOS OM.Y

HIKbU

AUI US Ur<«.Y

UUMBINbU SINULb UMII
(ba acooent)

BODILY INJURY (Par parson)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per acddant)

PKUPbK IT'DAMAGE
IPar aecwant)

UMBRELLA LIAS

EXCESS UAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAtMSAMOE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UABIUTY v/u
ANY PROPRIETORflSARTNEWEXECUTIVE r—\
OPFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? ^
(MaiKlatory In NH)

WWC3731065 07/01/2024 07/01/2025
V "reR
A STATUTE

DTTT
ER

HI A
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT sl.000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE sl.000,000
If yes. daacrtM under
DESCRl " - - -IPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT Sl.000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS ILOCATTONS f VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Addtdonal Remarks Sehadula, may be attached If rr>or« space Is required)

VNA at HCS, Inc

This Certificate is Issued for Insured operations usual to home health and hospice activities

CANCELLATION

DHHS

Contracts and Procurement Unit

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

)  129 Pleasant street

Concord, NH 03301

1

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#847903100/M45487217

® 1983-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are reglstared marks of ACORD
SSTZP
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Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2024 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA

ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Certifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant: VNA at HCS, Inc.

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: {check here) x

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:

Category CertificatioD

01 Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant

02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program

11 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission

Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs

13 State of Good Repair Grants

14 Infrastructure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Service

18 Interest and Financing Costs

19 Cybersecurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and
Operations

20 Triballransit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program

CRRTIFfCATlONS AND ASSURANCES SIGNATURE PAGE

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT

Name of the A^licant: VNA at HC8. Inc.

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalf ofthe Applicant, I declare that it has duly authorized me to make these
Certifications and Assurances and bind its con^Uance. Thus, it agrees to comply with all federal laws, regulations,
and requirements, follow applicable federal guidance, and comply whb the Certifications and Assurances as
indicated on the foregoing page applicable to each application its Authorized Representative makes to the Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) in the federal fiscal year, irrespective of adietbcr the individual that acted on his or
her Applicanfs behalf continues to represent it

The Certifications and Assurances the Applicant selects apply to each Award for which ft now seeks, or may
later seek federal assistance to be awarded by FTA during the federal fiscal year.

The AK)licant aflfinns the truthftilness and accuracy ofthe Certifications and Assurances it has selected in the
statements submitted with this document and any other submission made to FTA, and acknowledges that the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986,31 U.S.C. i 3801 etseq., and implementing U.S. DOT regulations,
"Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 CFR part 31, apply to any certification, assurance or submission made to
FTA. The oiminal provisions of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 apply to any certification, assurance, or submission made in
connection with a federal public transportation program authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other statute



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

In signing this document, I declare under penalties of peijuiy thst (he foregoing Certifications and Assurances, and
any other statements made by me on behalf of the Applicant are true and accurate.

Date: March 8. 2024

Authorized Representative of Applicant

Signature.

Name Mauta McQueeney



FFY 2024 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Ycfu- 2024 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipients to comply Avith the requirements contained in the
agreement in order to receive Federal funds. The language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT^.

I acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2024 Federal Transit Adininistration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the term of the
agreement.

\/([fA- ctf
Name of Agency ^ Date

Name of Authorized Official Signature



0 il.i. DEPABTWtwr Of uoon

OfBca of Labof.Managgment Standards

Special Warranty Arrangement

For.ApplIcdtion to other Than Urbanized Over-the-Rpad Bus A^ce^bility
Injects

PURSUANT TO SECTION 53.33(b) OF

Title 49 of the u.s. code, chapter 53

January 3i_2f>U

Thp.follQvyjhg tarigua^ shall be made part of the contract of assignee by.reference'lh die Federal Transit Admihistratlbh's Master

Agreement as signed by the grantee:

The terms and conditions set forth below shall apply for the protecdbn of the transportation-related employees in the
trat^p|tati.bn Mfvlce area of the Projier^ As a precondition of ti>e release of.as^stance by the'Gra tttee/Sta.te.Agmcy.to priy

Recipient under the grant, the Grantee shall bind the Reclfrient to these obligations by Incorporating this arrangement into the
contract of assistance between the Grantee and the Bpcipl<nt(s), by reference. If a Grants fajls to corpply with the.terms of.the

wananty and ̂lls.io.bind a Reciplier^t as a precondition to the release of funds, the Grantee wlU be a guarantor of the required

p.rOteiTiphs arid the Gfaritee.yvlll be required tO act .as if It were the Recipient.of fup.ds unless and until the Grantee is abletp .secure
the retroactive agreement of the Recipient to be bound by the.terms of theWarranty:

These protective arrangements are intended.for.the benefit of transit employees in.the service area of the project, who are

bpntideied as third-party benefldaries to the~employee'protective arrangement incorporated by. referenced in the grant contract
between the U.S. Department of Transportation and the Grantee, and the parties to the contract so signify by executing that

contract. Tiahtit'aihplbyi^ are also third party benefldaries to tpe protective arrahgempnts incorp.dr8ted in sub^uent contracts
of assistance between the Grantee and any Recipient Employees, orthelr representative, may assert.clalms with re^edto the
protective anpngements undpr this provision. This dause creates ho Indepeitdent caiise of action agalh^ the United .S^s
Government

The tenn 'service area,"* as used.herein. Includes the geographic area over which the Project Is operated and the.area whose

population Is served by the Project ihciudliig adjacent arOas affected by the Project the term 'Union,' as used herein, shall refer to
any tabor organization representing emplqyees providing public transportation services in 'tiie service area of. a Pipjpd! assisted
under the grant^The'term "employe'e./as iised herein, shall include individuals whoimay or may hot be r^resented by a Union..
The term 'Redplent'.as used herein, shall refer to any employerfsj.receiylng transportation assistance under the grant The term
'Grantee,* at uSed herein, shall refer to the applicant for assistance; a GranteO.whIch receives assistance is also a Recipient

Arrangefhentso.thataparticularGrahteeorRedpientcan continue to satisfy the'requlrements of the statuteythe.Department vriII
issCie a supplementary certification lettof'Setting forth the alternative provisfbns to be'ihduded In the contract of assistance
between the Grantee and FTA, by referent. These terms w/lll be made binding upon the particular Grantee or Redplehtj, along.with
these teims and oohdItlbhS, for each subsequehtgfant Of assistance until Withdiawn In iMritlhgby the Department

(1) The Project shall be carried out fn such a manner and upon such .terms and conditions as u^ll not adversely affect employees of
the RccJplent and of any other surfece public transportation provider in the transjyiiTatloci serylce area ofthe.PrpJect: !.t;.shali be an
obligation of the.Redplent to assure that any and all transportation services assisted by the Project are contracted for and operated
in such 4 manner that they do not impair the rights and Interests ofaffecfed ernplpyees. The term "Prpject"'as.used hereiniSha|l

not be limited to the particularfecillty, service, or operation assisted by Federal funds, but shall include any changes, whether
organizational, operationat, technological, or otherwise, which are a resutt.of the assistance provided. The phrase 'as a result of the
Project," shall, when used In this arrangement, include events related to the Project.oaurring in anticipation of, during, and
subsequent to tbe .Prpject and any progra m of efficiendes or economies related th.ereto; provided, howeyer, that yqlurne rises and
falls of business, or changes in'volume and character of employrnent brought abolit solely Ify causes other than the Project
(in.cjudiiig any economjes or efficiencies.unrelated to the Project) are not within the purview of th($ arran^ment-

An employee covered by this arrangement, who Is not dismissed, displaced or othervrise worsened ln his/her portion with regard
to employment as a result of the Project, but who is dismissed, displaced or.otherwiseworsened'solely.because of the total'or
partial termination of the Project or exhaustion of Project funding shall not be deemed eligible for a dismissal or di^acement
alfowance within the meaningof paragraphs (6) and (7) of this arrangement



(2) Where empioyees of a Recipient are represented for collective bargaining purposes^ all Project services pro\dded by that

Recipient shall be provided under and in accordance with any collective bargaining agreement applicable to such.'empioyees which
Is then io.effect This Arrangement does not create any collective bargaining relationship where one does not already eidst or

between any Recipient and the employees of another employer. Where the Recipient has no coliecdve bargaining relationship vdth
the Unions representing employees.in the service area^. the,Recipient will not take any action which impairs or interferes with the
rights, privileges, and benefits and/or the preservation or continuation of the collective bargaining rights of such employees.

(3} All; rights, pr(\dleges,and benefits (Including pendon rights and benefits) ofemployees covered by this arrangement {Indiiding
employees having already retired) under existing collective bargaining agreements or otherwise, orunder any revision or renewal
thereof,;^8ll be preserved and continued; provided, however, that sudt fi^ts, prllrfleges and benefits which are not foreclosed
from further bargaining under applicable law or contract may be modified by oillectlve bargaining and agreement by the Recipient
and the Union involved to substitute other rights, priwleges and benefits. Unless otherwise provided, nothing in this arrangement

shall be deemed to restrict any rights the Recipient may otherwise haye to direct the working forces and manage Its business as It
deemed best, in accordance with the applicable collective bargaining agreement

(4) The collective barg^nlng rî ts of employees covered by this arrangement, including the right to arbitrate labor disputes and to
maintain union security and checkoff arrangements, as provided by applicable laws, policies and/or existing collective bargaining

agreements, shall be preserved and continued. Provided, however, that this provision shall not be interpreted so as to require the
Recipient to retain any such ri^ts which exist by virtue of a collectiye bargaining agreernent after such agreement Is r>o longer In

effect

The itedplent agrees that it will bargain collectively with the Union or otiierwise arrange for the continuation of collective
bargaining and that It will enter Into, agreements with the Union or arrange for such agreements to be entered'.lnto, relative to all

subjects which are or may be proper subjects of collective bargaining. If, at any time, applicable law or contracts permit or grant to

employees covered by thl$ arrangement the right to utilize any economic measures, noting in this amangement shall be deemed

to foreclose the exerdse of such right

(5)(a} The Recipient shail provlde fo all affected employees sixty (60) days' notice of Intended actions which may result in

displacements or dismissals or rearrangements of the working forces as a result of the Pt:oject. In the case of employees
represented by a Union, such notice shall be provided by certified mall through their representatives. Thie notice shall contain a full

and adequate statement of the proposed changes, and an estimate of.the number of employees affected by the Intmded changes,

and the number and classlficationsof anyjobs within the Jurisdiction and controlof the Recipient, Induding those in the.

employment of qny entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21), Byajlable to be filled by such affected,employees.

.(5)(bJ The prpc^ures of this subparagraph shall apply to cases where noticesjnyolve ernploy^ represent^ by a Uriion for
cotiective'bargaining purposes. At the request of either the Redplent or the representatives of such employees, negotiistions for the

purpoMS of re^dhing agreement with respect fo the application of the terms and conditions of this arrangement shall commence

(mmedlafoly. These negotiations shall Indude determining the selection of forces from, among the mass transportation employees

who may be affect^ as a result of the Project, to establish whidi such employees ̂all be offered employment for vyhi^ they are
qualified or can be trained. If no agreement is reached within twenty (20) days from the commencement of negotTstions, any party

to the dispute riiay submit the matter to dispute seMement procedures in accordahre with paragraph (15) of this arrangemenL
Unless the parties otherwse mutually agree in writing, no change in operation^ services, fodlitiespr equipment within the

purview of this para^ph (S) shall.c^ur upti) after either: .ij an.,agre.ementvyith respect to the appUcatipo.of tiie terrns an.d
conditions of this arrangement to!the intended change(s) is.reached; 2) the decision of the arbitrator has been rendered pursuant

tothlsiajbparagraph (bj;.or 3) an arbitrator seiected pursuant to Para^ph (is) of this .arrangement determines that the interided
change(s) may be Instituted prior to the finalization of implementing arrangements.

.(5)(c) In the event of a dispute as to whether an Intended change within the purview.of this,paragraph (5) may be Instated at the
end. of the 6p-day. notice period arid before ar) Implementlrig agreen^t.ls reached or a filial arbitration deddoii is rendered

pursuant b subparagraph (b), any involved party may Immediately submit thatlssue to arblbation under paragraph (15) ofthis

Anaoserftent iri.any sudi arbitration, the arbibator ̂ all rely upon the stahdardsand criteria utilized by the SurfoceTransporti.tion
Board (and Its predecessor agency, the Interstate Commerce.Commlssion) to address the "preconsummatiori' issue in cases
lnyptv|ngemplo)ree profoctlbiu pursuant to 49 U;S.C Section 11326 (or'Its pi^Kessor, Section 5(2)(n bf.the inter^'teCbrfimerqe

Act, as amended). If the Recipient demonstrates, as a threshold matter In any such arbitration, that the intended action'ls a
tradrage rights, lease proceeding or similar trarisactlon, and not a merger^ acquisition,.0nMl]datlpn, or other similar transaction,

the burden shall then shift to the involved.labor organlzation(s} to prove that under the standards and criteria referenced above,

the l.nterided action should, not be permitted fo be Iristltuted prior to the effective date of a.riegotiated or arbitrated implernentlhg

agreement If.theReciplent foils to demonsbaie.that the Intended action Is a trackage rights, lease proceeding, or similar
transactiori. It ̂ 11 be tite.burden of the Recipient to prove that under the standards and Crlterta.refiefenced above, the Intended
action should be permitted to be Instated prior to the effective date of a negotiated or arbitrated implementing agreement For

punfos0 of any 0ch arbitration, the time period with|n.wh|ch the pa.rties are to re0or>d fo the 11^ of potential arbitrators



submitted the American Arbitration Association Service shall be five (5) days, the notice.of hearing may be giyen orally or'by

^^miie; the hearlngwili be held promptly, the award of the arbitrator shall be rendered promptly and, unless otherwise agreed to
by the.parties, no later than fourteen (14) days from the date of closing the.heaflngs, with five (5) additional days for mailing if

pbsthiearihg briefs are requested by' either party. The Interided change sh'all.not be instituted during the pendency of any
arbitration proceedings under this subparagraph (c).

(5)(d) If an jritended change within the purview of this paragraph (5) Is instituted^before an implementing agreement is reached or a
final arbitration decision is rendered pursuant to subparagraph (b), all employees affected shall be kept finandalty whole^ as if the

noticed and Implemented action has not taken place, from the time they are affected until the effective date of an implementing
agreement or final arbitrationdedslon. This protection shall be In addition to thepfotective period dehned In paragraph (14] of this
arrangement, which period sfiall be^n on.the effective date of the Implementing.agreement or final arbitration decision rendered
pursuant tO subparagt^ph (b).

An employee selecting, bidding on, or hired to fill any position e^blished as a reultof a noticed and implemented action prior tO'

the consummation of an Implementing agrMment or final arbitration dedslbri shall accumulate no benefits uhd^'tills
arrangement as a result thereof during that period prior to the consummation of aniimplementing agreement or final arbitration

dedslonpu.fsuantto sub|»ragraph(b];

(6)(a) Wheheyef an.employee, re^ir>ed in seivlce, recalled Co service, or ̂ ployed by the Recipient pur^ant to paragraphs (5), (7)
(e), or (IS) hereof fs placed in a worse position with respect to compensation as a resultof the Project, the employeeshall be'
considered a."dispi3ced ethployee", and.shall be paid a monthly "displacement allowance" to be determined In accordance wi.th
this paragraph: Said dIsptacemeht'alloWanCe'shall be paid each dl^laced employee during the protective period so I6ng.as the
employee Is M.hable, jn the ecerdM of his/her seniority rl^ts, to obtain a po^tioq producing compenntiQi) equal to or exceeding
the compensation the employee received Inthe.position from which the employee was displaced, adjusted to reflect subsequent
general wageiadjustrfienb, mdudriig cost of living adjustmerits where prided fph

(6}(b) T!he displacement allowance ̂ all be a rnonthly allowance deterrnined by computing tfte ttdal cofTipepsatiph received by the
employee, includlngvacation allowances and rrionthly compensation guarantees, and hls^er total time paid for during the last
twelve (12) months In which, the, erhpl^ee performed compensated Service (ppre than fifty per centum of each such rhdnths, based

upon the employeeIs normal work schedule, immediately preceding the date of his/her displacement asa result of the Project, and

by dMdJng separately the total compensation and the total time paid for by twelve^ thereby produdhg the pvera^.monthly
compensation and'the average monthly time paid for. Such allowance shall be adjusted !to reflect.subsequent general wage
adjustments, including cbst of Uyingadjustments yri)ere prpyided for. tfthe djsplaced erhpl.pyee's dprhpeKution In.hj^er current
position is less in any month duringhls/her protective period than the aforesaid average compensation (adjusted to r^ect

subsequ.Mt ̂neral wage adjustments. Including cost of llyingad]ustriients where prpyided for), the employee shall be paid the
difference, less compensation fbr.any time lost on account of voluntary absences to. theextent.thattheemployeejsnot available
for servfM equivalent his/her average mohthly tirpe, but-the empl^ee.,shall be:0mpen»ted In addition tiiereto at' the iatie of
the current position for any time worired In excess of the average monthly time paid for. If a.dlsplaced employee foils to.exercise
hi^ef M.nlpri.ty rights to secure another positibn to which the employee is entitled under the then easting'cpllectjve bargaining
agreement, and which carries a wage rate and compensation exceeding that ofthe position which the employee elects to.retain,
the employee i^all thereafter be treated, for foe purposes ofthis para^ph, as oaupylng.the position the erhpldyee elects to
decline.

(6)(c) The displacement allovfance shall cease pricM'to the expiration of the protective period in the event of the displaced

employee's rtati^atibh, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause in'accordance with ariy labor agreement applicabletohiVher
employment

(7)(a) Whenever any employee is laid off or otherwise deprived of emplbymentas a result of ti>e Project, In accordance.with any

doliective'iMiigalhlhg.agreement applicable to his/her employment, the employee shall be considered a employee' arid
shall be paid a monthly dismissal allowance to be determined in accordance with this paragrqph.!Sa!d.dismis$al'aliowance shall

first be.paideOch dismissed employee On the'folitieth (30fo) day 'foilowing.foe day on which the emp>ioy6e Is "dismiss^" end shaj]
continue.duringfoe pr<rtective period, as follow:

Ehftployee's length ofservice
Prior to effect Poriod of nrntection

1 day fo S.years equivalent period

S.y^is orfnora 6 years

The monthly dismissaTaliowahce Shall be equivalent to one-twelfth (l/l2th} of the total compensation received by the employee In
the last twelve (12).month$ of higher emp[(^ent In which the employee performed compensation service more than fifty per
centum of each such month based oh the employee's normal work schedule to the date on which foe employee was first deprived



of employment as a result of the Project Such allowance shall b.e adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage adjustments,
including cost of Uving adjustments where provided for.

(7)(b) An employee shall be regarded as deprived of employment and.entitled to a dismissal allowance when the position the
emptdyM holds is aboljshed as a result of the Project, or when the posltibh the employee holds js not abolished but thd employee
loses that position as a result of the exercise of seniority fightsby an.employee whose position Isabollshed as a result of the Project
or asaresult oftheexerdseofsenibrity rights by other employees bnx^ht about aM result of.the Project, and theemplcyM.Is
unable to obtain another position, either by the exercise of the employee's seniority rights,dr.through the Recipient, In aaordance
with subpara^ph (e).,ln the absence of proper notice followed by an agreement or decision pursuant to paragraph (5) hereof, no
employee who has been deprived of employment as a result of the Project shall.be required to exercise his/her seniority rî ts to
secure artother position in order to quall^ for a dismissal allowance hereunder.

(7)(c) Each employee.receivi;ng a dismissal allowance shall keep the Recipient Informed as to his/her cunent address and the
current name and address ofany other person by whom the employee may be regularly employed, or If the employee Is self-
employed:

(7)(d) The dismissal allowance shall be paid to the regularly assigned Incumbent of the position abolished. If the position of an
employee is abolished when the employee Is absent from service, the employee will be entitled to the dismissal allovrance when
the employee Is available for service. The.employee temporarily hlling said position at the timejt was abolished will be given a
dismissal allowance on.the basis of that position, until the regular employee is availablefor service, and dtereafter shall revert to
the employee's previous status and will be given the protections of the agreement In said position, If any are due him/her.

(7)(e) An employee receMng a dismissal allowance shall be subject to call to return to service by the employee's former eniployen
notification shall be In.accordance vrith the terms of the then-existing collective bangaining agreement if the employee is
represented by a union-Prior tp such call to return to vyo.rk by his/her employer, tiie employee may be required by the Recipient to
accept reasonably comparable employment for which toe employee Is physically and mentally qualified, or for which toe employee
can.become qualified .after a reasonable training or retraining period, provided it does not require a chan^ i n resi.dence.orlnfrin^
upon the employment rights of other employees under then-existing collective bargaining agreements.

{7](0 When an employee who is recei^ng a dismissal allowance again commence employment in accordance with subparagraph
(e) above, said alicrwance shall cease while the employee is so reemp[<wed. and toe period of time during which toe employee is so
reemployed shaU be deducted from the total period for which toe employee Is entitled to receive a dismissal allowance. During the
time of (uch.reemployment, toe employee shall be entitled to the probections of this arrangement to toe extent they are applicable.

(7)(g) The.djsmlssal allowance of any ernployee vtop Is otherwise employed shall be reduced to the extent .that the.employee's
combined.montoly earnings from such other employment or self-employment, any benefits received from any unemployment
Insurance law, and his/her dismissal allowance, exceed the amount upon which the employeels djOTlssai .aUowrance is based. Sudi
employee, or his/her union representative, and the Recipient shad agree upon a procedure by which the Redpient:shall be kept
currentiyfoformed. of the earnings of such empl<^ in employment other than.with toe employee's former employer, including
self-employment; and the benefits received.

(7)(h) The dismissal allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the probective period in the event of the failure of toe employee
.without gocd cause to retum to service In accorda.nce wlth the applicable labor agreement, or to accept emplpycnent as prcndded
under subparagraph. (e) above, or In toe event of.the employee's resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for aiuse in
accordance v^th any labor agreement applicable to his/her employment

{7)(l) A dismissed employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall actively seek and. not refuse other reasonably comparable
employment offered him/her for which the employee is physically and mentally qualified and does not require a change In the

discontinuance of toe employee's allowance; provided that said dismissal allowance shall not be discontinued until final
determination |s made ejther.by agreement betyveen toe,Recipient and the employee or his/her represen.tatlve, or by final
arbitration decision rendered In accordance,with paragraph (X5) of this arrangement that such employee did not comply with this
obligation^

(8) In determining (engto of service ,qf a dl.splaced or disrnlssed.employee for purposes of this arrangement, such employee.sh.all be
given full service credits In accordance With the records and labor agreements applicable to him/her and the employee shall be
given addltiopal service credits for each.monto in whjch.the eniRloyee.re.cejv« a dismissal or dlspla«merit allowance as If the
OTployee were continuing to perform services In his/her former position.

(9) No employee shall be entitled to dtoer a displacement or dismissal allowance under paragraphs (6) or (7) hereof because of toe
abolishment of a position to which, at some future.time, the employee could have bid, been tran^erred, or pronidtied.



(10) No employee receiving a dismissal or displacement allowance shall be.depriyed, during the employee's protected period, of
any rights, privileges, drbeheflts attaching to his/her employment^ ihcludihg. without llmitatlbn, group life ihsurahcb,
hospltalization and.mediul care, free transportation for the employee and the. employee's family, sick leave; continued status and
participation under any disability or retirement'program, and such other employeeibenefits as Railroad Retirement, Sodal Security,
INorkmen's Compensation, and unemployment compensation, as well as any other benefits to which the employee may be entitled
under the sanie conditions and so long as such benefits continue to be accorded to other employees of the bargaining unit, in
active service or furloughed as the case may be.

(11)(a) Any employee rayered by this arrangement who Is retained In the service of his/her employer, or who i.s later restored to
service after t>eing entitled to receive a dismissal alloM^nce, and who is requited to di'ange the point of his/her employment in
order to retain or secure active employment with the Recipient in accordance.with this arrangementj, and who is required to move

his/her place of residence, shall be ielmbursed for all expenses ofmovihg His/hei' household and other personal effects, idf the
traveling expenses for the employee and members of the employee's Immediate timiiyi including living expenses for the employee
and the employee's immediate family, and for his^er own actual wage loss during the time necessary (of such transfer and for a
reaspnable.time thereafter, not to exceed. Rve (5) working days. The exact extent of the responsibiiity of the Recipient under this
paragraph, and the vrays and means of transportation, shall be apeed upon In advance between the Recipient and the affected
employee or the employee's representatives.

(ll)(b) If any such employee is laid off within three (3) years after chan^ng his/her point of employment inaccordance with
paragraph (a) hereof, and elects to moVe his/her place ofresidehce back tothe original point of employment, the Recipient shall
assume the expenses, losses and costs.of moving to the sam.e extent provided ln:subpara^ph (a) of this para^ph (11) and
paragraph (12)(a) hereof.

(U)(c) No claim for reimbursement shall be paid under the provisions of this paragraph unless such claim Is presented to the
Recipient in writing within ninety (90) days after the date on which the expenses were incurred

(11)(d) Except as otherwise provided in subparagraph (b), changes in place of residence.-subsequent to the initial changes as a
rosultofthe ̂ ect, which are riot a result of the Project but grow outof the riormarexerclse of seniori^ H^ts, shall riot be
considered vyithi'> the purview of this paragraph.

(12)(a) The fbllbwing conditions shall apply to the extent they are applicable in;each instar>ce to any employee who Is retained in
the service ofthe empibyer (or who is later restored to ser\rice being entitled'to received dismissal allowance), Who isTequired
to change the point of his/her employment as a result of the Project, and is thereby requlred.'to move hiyher place of residence.

If the employee (s under a contract to purchase his/her home, the Recipient shall protect the employee against loss under such

contract, and in addition, shall relieve the employeefrqm any forther obligation thereunder.

if the employeeholds an unisipfred lease of a dwelling occupied as the employee's home, the'RecIpient diall protect the employee
^m all loss and cost in securingthe^.ricetlation of said lease.

(I2)(b) No claim for loss shall be paid under theprovislons of this paragraph unless such daim Is presented to the Recipients
writing within one year after the effective date of the change in.resldence.

(i2){c) Should a controversy arise In respect to the value of the home, the loss sustained in its sale, thq'loss under a contract for
purchase, loss and cost In securing termination of a jease, or any other question In .oonnectipn with these matters, It shall be
decided through aJoint conference between the employee, or hi^er union, and the Recipient in the event they are unable to
agree; the dispute or controyeisy may be referred by the Recipient or the union to a board pf cornpeten't real estate appraisers
selected In the fbllbwing manner one (1). to be selected by the representatives of the employee, and one (1) by the Redpient and
these two, if unable to agree within,thirty (30) days upon the.valuation, shall.endeayor.by agreemmt with ten (10) days thereafter
to'select'a third appraiser or to agree to a miethod by which a third appraiser shall be selected, and foiling such'agreement, eithd*
par^ may request theState and Ipcal.Board of Real Estate Commissioners to designate within.ten (10) deys a third appraisen
whose designation will be binding upon the parties and whose jurisdiction shall Ifmited todetennination of the issues raised In
this paragraph only. A dedsion of a majori^ of the appraisers shall be required and-sajd dedsion shall be final, binding, and
conditslve. The compensation and expenses of the neutral appraiser.induding expenses of the appraisal board, shall be borne

equally by the padfes to the proceedings.'All othef.ecpenses shall be paid the party incurring.them. Including the^mperrsatibn
of the appraiser selected by such party.

(i2)(d) Except as otherVrise provided in paragraph (li)(b) hereof, changes in place of residence, subsequent to the initial changes'as
a result of die Project, which are not a result of the Project but grow out of the nonpal exerdse of seniority rights, shall not be



con^der^ within the purview of this paragraph.

(12)(e) "Change In r^dence" rneans transfer to a work locatlori which Is either (A] put»de a radius of bventy (20) miles of the
employee's former work location and farther from the ernployee's residence than was his/her former work.location, or (B) is more
than:th(rty (30) normal hjghway route miles from the em ployee's residence and also farther from.his/her residence than was the
employee's former work location.

(13)(a) A dlsmlssed.emptoyee entitled to protection under this arrangement may; at the employee's option.wlthin twenty-one (21)
dayspf his/her dlismlssal. resign and (in lieu of all other benefits and protections provided. In this arrangement) accept a lump sum
payment corftputed in accordance with settion (9) of the.Washlngton Job Protection Agreement of May 1936:

1 year and l^ than 2 years 3 months' pay

2  -3 ■ 6" "

lO ? r ■''IS " 12 " "
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In the.case of an employee with less than one year's service, five days' pay, computed by multiplying by 5 tf»e normal daily earnings
(including regularly scheduled overtime, but excluding other overtime paynients) recsh/ed by the employee in ti)e position last
oaupled, for each month in which the employee performed service, will be paid as the lump sum.

Len^h of service shall be computed as provided in Section 7(b] of the Washington Job Protection Agreement, as follows:

For the purposes ofthisarrangementi.the length of service of the employee shall bedetermlned from the date the employee last
acqulr^ an emplc^eht status with the employing arrier arid the employee shall be given credit for one month's service for each
month In which the employee performed any service (In any capacity whatsoever) and twelve (12) such months shall.be credited as
one year's service. The employment status of an employee shall not be interrupted by furtough in Instances where the ̂ ployee.
has a ri^ to and does return to service when called. In determining length of service of an employee acting as an officer or other
official representative of an employee orgahlzati.pri, the employee vrill be glveii credit for performing service while so engaged on
leave of absence from the service of a carrier.

(13)(b) One month's pay shall be computed by, multiplying by 30 the normal dally eamings (Including regularly scheduled overtime,
but ecduding other overtime payments) received by the mpjoyee in the position last occupied prior to time of the employee's
dismissal as a result of the Project.

(14) Wheneverused herein, unless the context requires otherwise, the term "protective period" means tfiat period of time during
whi^ a d|s|^|aced or dismiss^ employee Is to be ptpyi.ded protection hereuruler and emends from th.e date on which ah employee
Is di^laced or dismissed to the expiration of sfx (6) years thereffom, provided, however/that the protective period for any

period following the date the.employee was displaced or dismissed than the employee's length of service, as shown by therecords
and labor agfeiejhents.applicableto his/her emplpyment prior to the date of the employe's displacement or dismissal.

(lS)(a) In.tite evMtthatemployee(s)arer^.resehtedbya Unjpn.any dispute, daitn, or grievance artslngfrom of .felatirigtothe
interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this arrangement, not otherwise pvemed by paragraph i2(c), the
Labor-Managen)eht Relations Act, as amended, the Railyvay Labor Act, as amended, or by Impasse resolution provisions jn a
collective^bargalning or protective.arrangement IhvoWng the Recipient and,the Unloni which .cannot'be settled by the parties'
thereto wittiin thirty (30) days after toe dispute or controversy arisen itiay bp re^ed by any wch party to any final and binding
disputes setUementprocedure acceptable to the parties. In toe event they cannot agree upon such.procedure, the dispute, claim,
of grievance may be submitted at toe,*yrl.tten request pf ̂  Recipient or the Union; to final and binding arbitration; Should the
parties be unable to agree upon the selection of a neutral arbitrator within ten (10) days, any party may:request the American
Aitltratipn Association to furnish, jrom among.afbltfators wtip are then available tp serve, five fs) arbltratprsjfrom which a neutral
arbitrator shall be selected. The parties shall, within five (5) days after the receipt of such list, determine lot the ordef of
elimloatiori and, toefeaffw-eato shall, Iri that orderi alternately eliminate one riafneuntii only pnenarhe rernairis. The remaining
person on the 11^ shall be toe neutral arbitrator. Unless otherwise provided/In the case of arbitration proceedings, under paragraph
(5)'pf thlsafrarigerhent, the afWtratlpn shall cpfn.rhence,withlri fi fteen (15) days after sedectipn of appointrhefit'of toe neutral
arbitrator, and the decision shall be rendered within forty-five (45) days after the hearing of the dispute has been concluded and the

the arbitration proceedings.



(lS)(b) The compensation and expenses of the neutral artitratOTi and any other Jointly Incurred expenses, shall be borne equally by
the Unioh(s).and Recipient, and all odier ̂ pehses shall be paid by the party Incurring them.

(i5)(c)' In the event that emplOyee'($) are not represented by a Union, any dispute, clalrh, or grievance arising from or relating to the
Interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this arrangernent vyhich cannot be settled by the Recipient artd the
employee(s) within thirty (30) days after the dispute or controversy arises, may be referred by any such party to any final and
bindjpg dilute settlernent procedure acceptable to the parties^ or in the event the parties cannot agree upon sych a procedure,
the dispute or coritroversy may be referred to the Secretary of Labor fora final and binding determination.

(15)(d) In the event of any dispute as to'whether or not a particular employee vras affected by the Project, It shall be the obligation:

upon. It shall then be the burden of.the Recipient fo prove that factors other.than the Project affected the employee. The claiming
employee shall prevail If It is established that the Project had an ef^ upon the employee even If otherfectors may also have
affected die employee. (See Hodgson's Affidavit in Civil Action No. 825-71).

(16) The Recipient will be financially responsible for the application ofthese conditions and will make the necessary arrangements
sd.thaf any erriplo^e covered by this arrangement may file a writtw claim of Its.vio.latldn, through the Union, or direttly If the
employee Is outdde the bargaining unit, with the Redpient within sixty (60) days of the date the employee is termlnat^'or laid off
as a result of the Project, or wit'hin.eighteeri (18) months of the date the fmplc^'s ppsldon with respect to his/her erriplc^ent |s
Otherwise worsened'as a result of the ProjectJn the latter case, If the eventsgMng rise to thedalm have oaurred over an
exterided period, the 18-month Ilmilati6n shall be measured from the last sud) evwt 1^ benefit.shall be payable for aiiy. period
prior to six (6) months from the date of the filing of any claim. Unless such claims are filed with.the Recipient within said time
lifilitations, the Redpieiit shall thereafter be relieved of ail liabilities arid bblijgatip.ris related to the claim.

The Redpl6ntAvili fully honor toecbiih, maki'ng apptopriate payments, or will givo notice to the daimant of hlS^Or representatlvO
of the basis for den^ng or modifying such daim, ̂vir^ reasons therefore. If theRedpient falls to. honorsuch clalm;;the,Unionor

writing. WitNn ten (10) days from the recdpt .of such notice, the parties shall exchange such factual material as may be:requested of
them relW^nt to the dispositipn of the dalm and shj^l jointly take wch steps as may be necessary or dedrable to obtain from aiiy
third par^ such addiUonal factoal materials as.may be relevant, in the event the Recipient rejects the daim, the.daim may be
prpces^ to arbitradpri as hefeinabovO prdvided by paragraph (IS).

(17) Nodiing Irt this arfarigement shall be coristrued as depriving any employee of an/rights 6r benefits-which si^h employee may'
have under existing employment or collective bargaining a^eements or otherwise; provided that.there'shall be no duplication of
benefits to any employee, and, provided further/that any benefit Under this afrangemerit shall be con^ru'ed to indude the
conditions; responsibilities, and obligations accompanying such benefit This arrangement shall not be deemed a waiver of any
rights of any Union or of any represented empi^ee derived from any other agreement or prdvidpn of federal, stete or local law.

(18) During the etopioyM's pfotective period, a 'dismissed employee shall,.If the employee so requests; in writing, be granted
priority of employment or reemployment to'fill any vacant position withinihe Jurisdiction and control of the Redpient reasonably

arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21) herein, for whldi the employee Is, o.r by training or retraining cari become,.qualified; noti
however. In cOritravehtioh'of collective bargainingagfeeinents related thereto. In the event'such cmployise requests such tfairilhg
or re-training to fill such vacant position, the Redpient shall provide for such training or re-training at no cost to the.employee/The
eniplbyM Shall be paid the salary or hduriy rate provided for in the appUcabre!c6llective bargaining agieemet^t or othehArise
established In.personnel poddes or practices.for such position^ plus any displacement allowance to which the employee may be
otherVdSe entitied. If such dismissed employee who has made such request falls. Without good cause, within ten (lO) days to accept
an offer of a position comparable to that yvhlch the employee held when dismlssed.forwtiich^theierripl.oyee Is.quallfledi orfor which
the ethployiee has satisfactorily ompleted such training, the employee shall, effective at the'expiration ofsuch ten-day period,
forfeit ali rights and benefits under this arrangement

As botween employees.who request employment pursuant to this para^p.h, the following order where applicable shall prevail In
hiring such employees:

(a) Employees in the craft or class ofthevacancyshall be given priority over employees without seniority,In such craft or clas^

(b) As.between employees having senlority.in the craft or dass of the vacancy, the senior employees, based upon their service In
that craft or cl8ss..a.s shown on the appropriate seniority roster, shaUpreyall over Junior erhployees;

(c) As between ̂ rhpl^ees riot having smlority jii the craft or class of tiie.vaariu^^the teriioremf^pyee^ ba^ upon toeir.s^fte In
the crafts or classes In which they do have seniority as shown on the appropriate seniority rosters, shell prevail overjunior
employees.



(19) The Recipient will port, in a prominent and accessible place, a notlce.statlng that the Recipient has received federal assistance
lindrt-the Federal Transit statute and has agreed to comply with the provisions of 49 U.S.C, Section 5333(b). This notice shall atso
specify the terms and conditions set forth herein for the protection of employees. The Recipient shallmaintain and keep on file all
relevant books and records in sufficient detail as to provide the bade Information necessary to the proper application,
administration, and enforcement of this arrangement and to the proper determination of any claims arising thereunder.

(20) In the event the Project Is approved for assistance under the,statute, the foregoing terms and.condltjons shall be made part of
the contract of assistance between the federal government and tile applicant for federal funds and between the applicant andany
recipient of federal funds provided, hoyyeyer, that this arrangement.shall not merge Into the contract of assistance,.but shall be
independently binding and enforceable by and upon the parties thereto, and by any covered employee or his/her representative. In
accordance Mdth lb terms, nor shall any other employeeprotective apeement mergeinto this arrangetnent, but each shalj be.
Independently binding and enforceable by and upon the parties thereto. In accordance with its terms.

(21) This arrangement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto, and no proN^sions, terms, or
obUgatlpns herein contalned^shaU be afferted. modified, altered, or chariged Inany respect whatsoever'by reason of the
arrangements made by.or for tiie Recipient to manage and operate the'system.

Any person, enterprise, body, or agency, whether publicly - or privately-owned, which shall undertake the management provision
and/or operatlon of the Project seryl«s or ,the Recipients transit ̂ em,.dr any part or portion thereof, under contrectual
arrangements of any form vrith the Recipient, Its successors or assigns, shall agree to be bound by the terms of this arrangement
and. accept the responslblllty with the Reddlenf fof full perfprmai^ of these conditions. As a.condition precedent to any such
contractual arrangements,'the Redpient.shall require such person, entwprise, body or agency to soi agree.

(22) In the event of the.acqulsltlon, assisted with Federal funds, of any transportation.syrtem or services, or any part or portion
therwf, the employees of the acquired entity shall be assured employment, in comparable positions, wittiln thejurtsdictibn and
control of the acquiring entity..lncludlng positions In the employment of any. entity bound by this arrangement pureuant to
paragraph (21). Ail persons employed under the provisions of tl>is paragraph shall be appointed to such cpmparabie potitloris
without examination, other than that required by applicable federal, state or federal law or collective bargaining agreement, and
shall be (suited with thdr yMrs of service for purposes of seniority, vacations, and pensions in acwrdance with the rewrds of
their former employer and/or any applicable collective bargaining agreements.

(23) The employees covered by this arrangement shall continue to receive any applicable coverage under Social Security, Railroad
Retirtfhent, Workmen's Compensation, unemployment compensation, and tiie like. In no evCTt shaU these benefits be worsened
as a result of the Project

(24) In the event any proVslon of this arrangement Is held to be invalid, or otherwise unenforceable under the,federal, state, or
local law. In the context of a particular Project the remaining provisions of this arrangement shall not be affected and the invalid or
unenfojccable provision shall be renegotiated by the Recipient and the interested Union representatives, if any, of the employees
Involved for purpose of adequate replacement under Section 5333(b). If Siich negotiation shall hot*result in mutually satisfactory
agreement any party may invoke the jurisdiction of the Secretaty of Labor to determine substitute fair and equitable employee
protective arrangements for application only to the,particular Project, which.shall be incorporated In this arrangementonly as
applied to that project, and qny other appropriate action, remedy, or relief.

(:a) If any employer of tfw employees covered.by tills arrangement shall have rearranged or adjusted Its forces In anticipation of
the Project, with the.effect of depriving an employee of benefits to vrhlch the rtnployee should be entitled under this arrangement,
the p.rovislonsofthisarrangement sh?ll apply to such employee as of the date .when the employee was.so,affected.
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 4/8/2025

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name of Subrecipient Agency: VNA (aXHCS

VNA (aXHCS. shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, and requirements as
outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master Agreement and Federal
Certifications and Assurances. This award includes information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as
follows:

li'rA award prelect description: (As required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFA TA)

Amount: $554,000

Assistance Listing Number (ALN) (fk/a CFDA): 20.509

FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5311 (RURAL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROJECT
SOLICITATION

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): NH-2024-007
Federal Award Date: 7/22/2024

Contact information for sub-awarding official;

Name: Frederick J. Butler Title: Public Transportation Administrator
Email: Frederick.J.Butler@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2565
Is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: De Minimis

Subrecipient Information:

Subrecipient Name: yNA@HCS
Subrecipient SAM.GOV Unique Entity ID (UEI):K76NXGVN1XX3
Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Maura McQueeney
Title of authorizing subrecipient official: President/CEO
Federal Clauses: Yes

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: N/A
(An approved federally recognized Indirect cost rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal
Government or, if no such rate exists, either a rate negotiated between the pass-through entity and the subrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate as defined in 2 CFR 200.332(b)(4)(i)(A)(B) and
(ii). hitPs./Avww. ecfr. eov/current/tltIe-2/subtltIe-A/chaDter-II/vart-200
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FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 4/8/2025

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date: 7/1/25 End Date: 6/30/27

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated bv thb action (aereement/amendment):

ForFFY: 2025 Section: 5311 Amount: $554,000

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipient (oriBlnal aereement & amendments):

ForFFY: 2025 Section: 5311 Amount: $554,000

Pass-through requirements;

The Subrecipient, VNA (a).HCS agrees to meet all requirement imposed by the pass-through
entity (NHDQT) on the subrecipient so that the Feder^ award is used in accordance with Federal
statues, regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

The Subrecipient, VNA (SxHCS agrees to any additional requirements that the pass-through
entity (NHDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) in
order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own responsibility to the Federal
awarding agency (FTA) including identification of any required financial and performance
reports.

The Subrecipient, VNA(SXHCS agrees to permit the pass-through entity (NHDOT) and auditors
to have access to the subrecipients records and financial statements as necessary for the pass-
through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and appropriate terms and conditions
conceming closequt of the subaward.:eming cioseout or

Date: ^ ̂  /

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Maura McQueeney

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: President/CEO

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official;



iBtemal i^e^ttO ;0«r^ba;
Diiraqtw
.'Bttilbgfl'..i^ 'Agre«si^tii

Date; P£C!'2..42S08

VHA AT HCS> - INC.
-3i'2 MAKLWPb St
KEEWB,. NH 03301

D^artmanl; of Treaauzy

P.p.' ?w"-2Bpe
Cl'abtimati Ohio 46201

pimcn to Odataot IM:
kBltH . jb.YNBS .52-00'491..

Coatadt Teip^^ieae iitiBflMra:
817-82^5500 -Phona
513-263^3756 Pax

Feddzal X^lantifioatlea isrus^ar:
02-0360640

Dear Slr-or Madam:

By, our determination dated.'Septerf^r-1982, you vere.held: to be^ .iaxenpt from
^dwV'Incdme Tax the ,proviaiona of aeotion 501(cM3), of the
Intpmal 'R^eiiue Code.

"You recently fiirniahed ue .•information, that HCS. Cannunity Care and-
P'referted" Care nierged'iHth..yNR'AT ICS^ ino. :oh June 30# 20p2.' In-,addition,
information" :Waa provldiad/regarding Jthe. diaepciation of Hcimp, Hoaithoare,
HOaploo.-and Goin^ Sdrviceja,. IriP'. frpmirC A..H :ltoalth,;Syatw,.of :the
.Monadnpot',.i^ton, "inc. Baaed.on 'the";"infojn»ti90,aub^tted ^ haw
detemllned''.that the mergeir ;and tli'o dia'abciatlon doea not-affect iypur.-exeiipt
atatua. The organization-Will continue uaing Onplov^-Idontifidatlon
HuBber'02-0360640.

Pl^ae: let' ua "know-about'any further'changes • in the character, purpoaea,
method.of operation,, narap.or addreee of your prganiratlon.

If you hwe any'gu'eetiona-'regarding 'thta matter,-pieaae- contact- the-'peraon
]^dee naiiie and tj^^hpho.'dvB^f .appear in the heading of thia letter..

Sihcerialy,

'M.

l^ia 6. Lerner
biwctor,.. Exempt Crganizationa

'-lUiilhgii ̂ and Agree^nta

Ehcloaure
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Home Healthcare. Hospice & Community
Services. Inc. and Affiliate (the Association), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2023
and 2022, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present falrty, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Association as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the results of their operations, changes in
their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards. Issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described In the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report We are required to be Independent of
Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Change In Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Association adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 842, Leases during the year ended June 30. 2023. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to that matter.

Responslblllries of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and foir presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; and for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and foir presentation of consolidated financial statements
that afe free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Association's ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are avail^le
to be issued.

A udttoris Responslbllldes for the A udlt of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that Includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government
AudiUng Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the oveiride of internal control.

Maine • New Hampshire ■ Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona * Puerto Rico
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MIsstatements are considered material If there Is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Association's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estirhates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Association's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intemal control related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements,fyr Federal
Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such infomiation is the responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The Information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing
standards, in our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in ail material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Qovemment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated DecembeM9, 2023 on
our consideration of the Association's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's Intemal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Association's intemal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 19.2023, except for the Schedule of Expenditures oil Federal Awards which the date is March 28,2024



HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30. 2023 and 2022

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term Investments

Patient accounts receivable, net
Other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Assets limited as to use

Operating lease right-of-use assets, net
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
COVID-19 refundable advances and other deferred revenue

Current portion of operating lease obligations

Total current liabilities

Operating lease obligations, net of current portion

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total iiabiiitles and net assets

2m

$  1,016.708

2,096.258
443,698
366.916

3,922,680

13,932,601
208,616

2.163.642

2m

$  1,298,118
14,208

1,788,549
428,903

3^6.715

3,856,493

12,775,139

2.382.738

9 20.227.238 $ 19.014.370

660,942 $
970,787
31,285

302,158
961,056
257,913

1,637,413 1,521,127

139.584

1.776.997 1.521.127

17.641,277 16.776.013
808.964 717.230

18.460.241 17.493.243

1  20.227.238 $ 19.014.370

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-3-



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30,2023 and 2022

2023 2022

Operating revenue
Net patient service revenue
COVID-19 relief funding and other operating revenue
Gain on sale of financial asset

Net assets released for operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and related expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Other revenue and gains (losses)
Contributions and fundraising income
Investment income, net
Change in fair value of investments

Total other revenue and gains (losses)

Excess (deficit) of revenue over expenses

Net assets released for capital acquisition

Change In net assets without donor restrictions

$ 16,157,307 $ 13,018,339
2,916,202 2,959,326

34.300
154.42698.173

13,799,638
5,217,176
296.SS4

19.31?.367

M.141.686)

697,613
204,493

1.204.943

2.006.949

865,264

18.171.682 16.166.391

12,951,084
4,480,821
363.012

17.794.917

f1.628.526)

650,889

160,709
(1 867.525)

(1-055.927)

(2,684,453)

30.525

5  866.264 S (2.653.928)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Changes In Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

Net assets without donor restrictions
Excess (deficit) of revenue over expenses
Net assets released for capital acquisition

$  865,264 $  (2.684,453)

90.525

Change in net assets without donor restrictions 865.264 f2.653.928)

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Investment income

Change in fair value of Investments
Net assets released for operations
Net assets released for capital acquisition

163,716
3,683

22,508
(98,173)

13,515
2,623

(30,864)
(154,426)
f30.525)

Change in net assets with donor restrictions 91.734 f199.677)

Change In net assets 956,998 (2,853,605)

Net assets, beginning of year 17.493.243 20.346.848

Net assets, end of year S 18.450.241 S 17.493.243

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $  966,998 $ (2,853,605)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash used

by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 296,554 363,012

Change In fair value of Investments (1,227,461) 1,898,389

Investment Income restricted for reinvestment (3,683) (2,623)

Gain on sale of financial assets - (34,300)
(Increase) decrease In the following assets;

Short-term investments 14,208 3,966
Patient accounts receivable (307,709) 73,507

Other receivables (14.795) (85,051)
Prepaid expenses (40,201) (48,710)

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 258,784 (135,797)
Accrued payroll and related expenses 9,731 (279,669)
COViD-19 refundable advances and other

defamed revenue f226.628t 224.331

Net cash used by operating activities {m,m) (876.5501

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Investments (5,869,153) (3,218,446)
Proceeds from sale of investments 6,942,826 2,961,354
Capital expenditures, net of proceeds (71.8901 (54.103)

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 1.782 (311.195)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (282,410) (1,187.745)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1.298.118 2.485.863

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $  1.015.708 $ 1.298.118

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

1. Summary of Slanlflcant Accounting Policies

Organization

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. Is a non-stock, non-profit corporation in
New Hampshire whose primary purpose Is to act as a holding company and provide management
services to Its affiliate.

mm

VNA at HCS, Inc., Is a non-stock, non-profit corporation In New Hampshire whose primary
purposes are to provide home healthcare, hospice and community services.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Home Healthcare, Hospice &
Community Services, Inc., and Its affiliate, VNA at HCS. Inc. (collectively, the "Association"). They
are related through a common board membership and common management. All significant
Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Association prepares Ks consolidated financial statements In accordance with U.S. GAAR
established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (PASS). References to U.S. GAAR in
these notes are to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC).

Recently Adopted Accountlna Principle

Effective July 1, 2022, the Association adopted FASB ASC Topic 842, Leases (Topic 842). The
Association determines if an arrangement Is a lease or contains a lease at inception of a contract.
A contract Is determined to be or contain a lease. If the contract conveys the right to control the use
of Identified property, plant or equipment (an identified asset) in exchange for consideration. The
Association determines these assets are leased because the Association has the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefit from and the right to direct the use of the Identified asset.
Assets in which the supplier or lessor has the practical ability and right to substitute altemative
assets for the Identified asset and would benefit economically from the exercise of its right to
substitute the asset are not considered to be or contain a lease because the Association
determines It does not have the right to control and direct the use of the Identified asset. The
Association's lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material
restrictive covenants.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30,2023 and 2022

In evaluating Its contracts, the Association separately Identifies lease and non-lease components,
such as common area and other maintenance costs, In calculating the right-of-use (ROD) assets
and lease obligations. The Association has elected the practical expedient to not separate lease
and non-lease components and classifies the contract as a lease if consideration In the contract
allocated to the lease component is greater than the consideration allocated to the non-lease
agreement

Leases result in the recognition of ROD assets and lease obligations on the consolidated balance
sheet. ROU assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease
obligations represent the obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease, measured on a
discounted basis. The Association determines lease classification as operating or finance at the
lease commencement date. The Association did not have any finance leases as of June 30, 2023.

At lease Inception, the lease obligation is measured at the present value of the lease payments
over the lease term. The ROU asset equals the lease obligation adjusted for any Initial direct costs,
prepaid or deferred rent, and lease incentives. Topic 842 requires the use of the impilcit rate In the
lease when readily determinable. As most of the leases do not provide an Implicit rate, the
Assodation elected the practical expedient to use the risk-free rate when the rate of the lease Is
not implicit In the lease agreements.

The lease tenn may include options to extend or to terminate the lease that the Assodation Is
reasonably certain to exercise. Lease expense for operating leases is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Assodation has elected not to record leases with an initial term of 12 months of less on the

consolidated balance sheet. Lease expense on such leases is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Upon adoption of Topic 842, the Assodation elected the package of practical expedients permitted
under the transition guidance within the new standard which includes the following: relief from
determination of lease contracts included In existing or expiring leases at the point of adoption,
relief from having to reevaluate the dasslflcation of leases in effect at the point of adoption and
relief from reevaluation of existing leases that have Inrtial.dlrect costs assodated with the execution
of the lease contract.

The adoption of Topic 842 resulted In the recognition of the below assets and liabilities on July 1,
2022:

Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 266.818

Current portion of operating lease obligations 53,909
Operating lease obligations, net of current portion 212.909

Operating lease obligations $ 266.818
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

Results for the period prior to July 1, 2022 continue to be reported In accordance with the
Association's historical accounting treatment for leases.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Association have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. GAAP, which requires the Association to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Association. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Association's management
and the Board of Directors (Board).

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions are to be met by
actions of the Association or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Income Taxes

The Association is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). As
a public charity, the Association is exempt from state and federal Income taxes on income earned
in accordance with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal Income tax. Management has evaluated the Association's tax positions and concluded that
the Association has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

Uso of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financiai statements In conformity with U.S.' GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less, excluding assets limited as to use.

The Association has cash deposits In a major financial institution which may exceed federal
depository insurance limits. The Association has not experienced any losses In such accounts.
Management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these accounts.
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

Patient Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides a reserve for payment adjustments by analyzing past history and
Identification of trends for all funding sources in the aggregate. Management regularly reviews data
about revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the reserve which is netted against accounts
receivable. Amounts not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are

applied against the allowance for payment adjustments.

Patient accounts receivable, net were $2,096,258; $1,788,549; and $1,862,056 at June 30, 2023,
2022, and 2021, respectively.

Investments

investments in short-term investment options are reported as current assets. Investments held for
long-term retum are reported as non-current assets.

The Association reports investments at fair value and has elected to report ail gains and losses in
the excess (deficit) of revenue over expenses to simplify the presentation of these amounts In the
consolidated statement of operations, unless otherwise stipulated by the donor or State law.

Investments, In general, are exposed to various risks, such as Interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility risks. As such, It is reasonably possible that changes in the values of Investments
will occur In the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported In
the consolidated balance sheets.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include designated assets set aside by the Board of Directors and donor
contributions.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are expensed as Incurred and renewals and betterments
are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization expense is computed using the straight-line method
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Property is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes In circumstances indicate the
related carrying amount may not be recoverable. When required. Impairment losses on assets to
be held and used are recognized based on the excess of the assets' carrying amount over the fair
value of the asset.
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30. 2023 and 2022

Net Patient Service Revenue

Services to all patients are recorded as revenue when services are rendered at the estimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and others, Including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are
accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and in future periods
as final settlements are determined. Patients unable to pay full charge, who do not have other
third-party resources, are charged a reduced amount based on the Association's published sliding
fee scale. Reductions in full charge are recognized when the service is rendered.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Association. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on
actual services rendered. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to patients
receiving skilled and non-skilled services In their home or facility. The Association measures the
period over which the performance obligation is satisfied from admission to the point when it Is no
longer required to provide services to that patient, which Is generally at the time of discharge.

Providers of home health services to clients eligible for Medicare home health benefits are paid on
a prospective basis, with no retr'ospective settlement. The prospective payment Is based on the
scoring attributed to the acuity level of the client at a rate determined by federal guidelines. As the
performance obligations for home health services are met, revenue is recognized based upon the
portion of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price Is the
prospective payment determined for the medically necessary services.

Providers of hospice services to clients eligible for Medicare hospice benefits are paid on a per-
diem basis, with no retrospective settlement, provided the Association's aggregate annual
Medicare reimbursement Is below a predetermined aggregate capKated rate. Revenue is
recognized as the services are performed based on the fixed rate amount. As the performance
obligations for hospice services are met, revenue is recognized based upon the portion of the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
predetermined aggregate capitated rate per day.

Because all of the Association's performance obligations relate to short-term periods of care, the
Association has elected to apply the optional exemption provided In FASB ASC Subtopic 606-10-
50-14 (a) and. therefore. Is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the
reporting period.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise Is received, which Is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions If they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
When a donor restriction expires, that Is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets
released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met In the same

year as received are reflected as contributions without donor restrictions in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

COVID-19 and Relief Funding

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
a global pandemic. In response to the global pandemic, The Centers for Medicare & Medlcald
Services (CMS) implemented certain relief measures and also issued guidance for limiting the
spread of COVID-19.

The U.S. government has responded with several phases of relief legislation as a response to the
COVID-19 outbreak. Legislation enacted Into law on March 27, 2020, called the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), a statute to address the economic impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak. The CARES Act, among other things. 1) authorizes emergency loans to
distressed businesses by establishing, and providing funding for, forgivable bridge loans; 2)
provides additional funding for grants and technical assistance; 3) delays due dates for employer
payroll taxes and estimated tax payments for corporations; and 4) revises provisions of the IRC,
Including those related to losses, charitable deductions, and business interest.

American Rescue Plan Act

On March 11. 2021, the U.S. government enacted the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). ARPA,
amongst other things, provided support for health and human services workforce development In
response to COVID-19 and broader economic Impacts of the pandemic. The Association received
$16,307 and $248,428 in grant funding under ARPA through the State of New Hampshire Home
and Community Based Service fund during the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively,
for the purpose of workforce Investment. The Association incurred qualifying recruitment and
retention expenses of $162,579 and $53,478 during the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, which is recognized as COViD-19 relief funding and other operating revenue in the
consolidated statement of operations. The unspent ARPA funds as of June 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, were $13,715 and $194,951 and are included in COVID-19 refundable advances and
other defamed revenue on the consolidated balance sheets. The funds are available to use through
March 31, 2024.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30. 2023 and 2022

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financial Assets

As of June 30, 2023. the Association has working capital of $2,285,167 and average days (based
on normal expenditures) cash on hand of 19.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expendKure, such as
operating expenses and capital acquisitions riot financed with debt or restricted funds (unfunded
capital expenditures), were as follows:

2023 mi

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,016,708 $ 1,298,118
Short-term investments - 14,208
Patient accounts receivable, net 2,096,268 1,788,549
Other receivables 443.698 428.903

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year $

The Association has t>oard designated long-term Investments that could be made available for
general expenditure upon Board approval. Since these investments are currently Intended for long-
term investments, they have not been Included in the information above. The Association has other
long-term Investments and assets for restricted use, more fully described in Note 3, which are not
available for general expenditure within the next year and are not reflected in the amount above.

The Association has a $1,000,000 line of credit available to meet short-term needs, as disclosed In
Note 5.

3. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments arrd assets limited as to use, stated at fair value, were as follows:

2m 2m

Cash and cash equivalents $ 364,706 $ 1,071,402
U.S. Govemment and corporate bonds 2,064,603 2,283,550
Marketable securities 8^126,646 7,307,967
Mutual funds 3.376.646 2.126.428

Total Investments and assets limited as to use $ $ 12i769i34Z
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

2023

Short-term Investments without restrictions or designations $.

Assets limited as to use

Board-designated for future use
Donor-restricted, time or purpose
Endowment investments - unappropriated spending
Donor-restricted, perpetual In nature

-  $_

ZQ2g

14.208

13,123,637 12,057,909
329.089 217,704
246,644 265,295
234.231 234.231

Total assets limited as to use

Total Investments and assets limited as to use

13.932.601 12.775.139

t 13.932.601 a 12.789.347

Fair Value

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderty transaction
between market participants and also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to
maximize the use of observable Inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. The fair value hierarchy within FASB ASC Topic 820 distinguishes three
levels of inputs that may be utilized when measuring fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities In active markets that
the entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant observable Inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other
Inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable Inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pridng an asset or liability, the
Association did not have any Level 3 assets or liabilities as of June 30, 2023 or
2022.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

The fair values of all of the Association's investments, which are presented in the following table,
are measured on a recurring basis using Level 1 inputs with the exception of corporate bonds
which are valued based on quoted market prices of similar investments and categorized as Level 2
Investments.

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30. 2023

Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. Govemment and corporate bonds
Equity securities
Mutual funds

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Total

$  364,706 $ -  $ 364,706
2,064,603 2,064,603

8,126,646 . 8,126,646
3.376.646 . 3.376.646

$ 11.867.998 $ 2.064.603 $ 13.932.601

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30. 2022

Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. Govemment and corporate bonds
Equity securities
Mutual funds

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Total

$  1,071,402 $ -  $ 1,071,402
- 2,283,550 2,283,550

7,307.967 - 7,307,967
2.126.428 - 2.126.428

$ 10.505.797 S 2.283.550 $ 12.789.347

Investment income and change in fair value of Investments and assets limited as to use consisted
of the following:

Net assets without donor restrictions

Investment Income, net of fees
Change In fair value of Investments

Restricted net assets

Investment income

Change in fair value of Investments

Total

2023

204,493 $
1,204,943

3,683

2022

160,709
(1,867,525)

2,623
(30.864)

3  1.436.627 $ f1.735.057)

-15-



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

4. Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

Land

Building and improvements
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment
Construction In progress

Total cost

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Total property and equipment, net

6. Line of Credit

The Association has an unsecured $1,000,000 line of credit
with Interest at 1.25% above the prime rate (9.50% at June
balance at June 30, 2023 and 2022.

2023

615,786
6.704,016
3,446,027

27.767

9,692,686

7.629.044

mz

515,786
5,704,016
3,379.278

27.757

9.626.837

7.244.099

S  2.163.642 $_2*3§aJ2fi

payable on demand with a local bank
30, 2023). There was no outstanding

-16-



HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30. 2023 and 2022

6. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following:

Time or purpose restrictions for
Haskell endowment fund accumulated earnings - for

office rent
Johnson Family endowment fund accumulated earnings

for capital expenditures
Hospice accumulated earnings
Furniture and capital improvements
HEAL program
Palliative education

Music program
Outpatient Center
Bereavement

Operations accumulated earnings
Jones endowment fund accumulated earnings - for

equipment
Bednar endowment fund accumulated eamlngs - for

general purposes
Hospice memorial garden
Barbara Duckett scholarship

Total

Restrictions that are perpetual in nature for
Hospice
Operations
Johnson Family fund - for capital expenditures
Bednar endowment fund - Income for general purposes
Haskell endowment fund - for office rent
Jones endowment fund - for equipment

Total

zm

3,993
251

18,037
24,406
50,000
1,197

32,500
3,000

106,631
93319

zm

$  241,400 $ 264,104

4,714
958

10,365

(414)

(1,671)

(2.397)
112,374
94.966

3  S74.733 $ 482.999

$  10,000 $ 10,000
8,623 8.623
10,202 10.202
50,000 50.000

120,570 120,570
34.836 34.836

3  234.231 3 234.231
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

7. Endowments

The Association has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
(UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of
this interpretation, the Association classifies as a donor-restricted endowment (a) the original value
of gifts donated to the penuanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent donor-restricted
endowment, gifts, and (c) accumulations to the donor-restricted endowment made in accordance
with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation Is added to
the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund Is classified as net assets
with donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Association in a
manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.

In accordance with the UPMIFA, the Association considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds;

(1) The duration and presen/ation of the fund.
(2) The pulposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund.
(3) General economic conditions.
(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation.
(5) The expected total retum from income and the appreciation of investments.
(6) Other resources of the Association.
(7) The investment policies of the Association.
(8) The spending policy.
(9) Funds with deficiencies.

Retum Objectives and Risk Parameters

The Investment portfolio is managed to provide for the long-term support of the Association.
Accordingly, these funds are managed with disciplined, longer-term investment objectives and
strategies designed to meet cash flow and spending requirements. Management of the assets Is
designed to attain the maximum total return consistent with acceptable and agreed-upon levels of
risk. The Association benchmarks its portfolio performance against a number of commonly used
Indices.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Oblectlves

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-retum objectives, the Association relies on a total return strategy In
which investment retums are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized)
and current yield (interest and dividends). The Association targets an asset ailocatipn strategy
wherein assets are diversified among several asset classes. The pursuit of maximizing total retum
is tempered by the need to minimize the volatility of retums and preserve capital. As such, the
Association seeks broad diversification among assets having different characteristics with the
intent to endure lower relative performance In strong markets in exchange for greater downside
protection In weak markets.
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of the assets associated with Individual donor-restricted
endowments may fall below the level of the donors' original gifl(s}. The Board's policy does not
permit spending from unden/vater endowments. Any deficiencies are reported in net assets with
donor restrictions. At June 30, 2022. donor endowment funds with a fair value of $88,977 were
below the donor's original gift or stipulated levels by $4,482. At June 30, 2023, there were no such
deficiencies.

Spending Policy

The Association has a spending policy of appropriating a distribution annually up to 7% of the
endowment fund's average market value over the previous 36 months. Appropriations are
determined and made on an annual basis at year-end.

The following summarizes changes in endowment assets:

With Donor Restrictions

Without

Donor Purpose Perpetuai in
Restrictions Restrictions Nature Total

$13,496,906 $ 331,843 $ 234,231 $14,062,980Balance June 30, 2021

Investment income, net
Realized and unrealized gains on
investments

Contributions

Net assets released from restrictions

Balance June 30, 2022

Investment income, net

Realized and unrealized loss on

Investments

Use of board designated funds for
operations

Contributions

Net assets released from restrictions

Balance June 30, 2023

158,714

(1,868,428)
270,717

12,057,909

197,199

1,204,933

(400,000)
63,596

2,623

(30,864)

maoz)

234,231

161,337

(1,899.292)
270,717

^38.3071

12,557,435

200,882

1,227,441

(400,000)
63,696

(i&m

$13.123.637 $ 245.644 $ $1?.6Q?.g1?

265,295

3,683

22,508

145.8421
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

8. Nat Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is as follows:

2m ZQ2Z

Medicare $ 12,760,296 $ 10,455,442
Medlcaid 007,321 387,618
Other third-party payers 1.244.667 1,910,515
Private pay 246.023 264.764

Total $ 15.167.307 $ 13.018.339

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medlcaid programs are complex and subject to
Interpretation. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare and Medlcaid programs. The Association believes that it Is In
substantial compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. However, there is at least a
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount In the near term.
Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included In net patient service revenue in the year that such amounts
become known.

The Association provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Association does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenue.

The Association provided services In other health-related activities, primarily to Indigent patients, at
rates substantially below cost. For certain activities, services were provided without charge. The
Association estimates the costs associated with providing the other health-related activities by
applying Medicare cost report methodology to determine program costs less any net patient
revenue generated by the program. The estimated costs incurred in these activities amounted to
$1,585,931 and $1,310,676 for the years June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Association is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through local
community support and state grants. Local community support consists of contributions received
directly from the public. United Way, municipal appropriations, and investment Income earned from
assets limited as to use. Federal and state grants consisted of monies received from the State of
New Hampshire.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

In assessing coHectabillty, the Association has elected the portfolio approach. This portfolio
approach Is t>elng used as the Association has similar contracts with similar classes of patients.
The Association reasonably expects that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a group of
contracts would not differ materially from considering each contract separately. Management's
judgment to group the contracts by portfolio Is based on the payment behavior expected in each
portfolio category. As a result, management believes aggregating contracts (which are at the
patient level) by the particular payor or group of payors results In the recognition of revenue
approximating that which would result from applying the analysis at the Individual patient level.

9. Functional Expenses

The Association provides various services to residents within Its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows:

2m 2022

Program services
Salaries and benefits

Program supplies
Travel

Contract services

Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Total program services

Administrative and general
Salaries and benefits

Travel

Contract services

Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Total administrative and general

Total

$12,088,234
914,679
405,376

1,061,658
1.235,334
269.781

1,711,404
93,474

1,331,789
174,866
36.773

$11,153,760
626,467
391,355

1,010,901
1,066,802
312.626

15.965.062 14.561.911

1,797,324
93,373

1,119,986
171,937
50.386

3.348.306

$19.313.367 $17.794.917

Management's estimate of cost allocations at a functional level is based on Medicare cost report
methodology.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30. 2023 and 2022

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

The Association's operating leases are for Its office facilities with varying expiration dates. The
following Is a schedule, by fiscal year, of future minimum lease payments and reconcltlatlon to the
consolidated balance sheet:

2024 $ 74.399
2025 63,163
2026 45,238
2027 41.938

Total lease payments 224,738
Less present value discount 10.755

Operating lease obligations $

Weighted-average remaining lease term 3.51 years
Weighted-average discount rate 3.05%

Operating lease costs Incurred amounted to $65,007 in 2023 and $69,302 In 2022, which
approximated the cash paid for leases.

Malpractice Insurance

The Association maintains medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis. The
Association is subject to complaints, claims, and litigation due to potential claims which arise In the
normal course of business. U.S. GAAP requires the Association to accrue the ultimate cost of
malpractice claims when the Incident that gives rise to claim occurs, vi/ithout consideration of
Insurance recoveries. Expected recoveries are presented as a separate asset. The Association
has evaluated Its exposure to losses arising from potential claims and determined no such accrual
is necessary at June 30, 2023 and 2022. The Association Intends to renew coverage on a claims-
made basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available in future periods.

11. Retirement Plan

The Association sponsors a defined contribution plan. The retirement contributions by the
Association amounted to $187,425 In 2023 and $154,133 in 2022.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2023 and 2022

12. Concentration of Risk

The Association grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are Insured under third-party payer agreements. Following is a summary of accounts
receivable, by funding source:

2Q21 2SQ1

Medicare %
Medlcaid and other third-party payers SI 25

Total

13. Subsequent Events

100 % 100%

For financial reporting purposes, subsequent events have been evaluated by management through
December 19, 2023. which Is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be
Issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL

CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPUANCE

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITINQ STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate

We have audited, In accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Govemmenf Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Home Healthcare, Hospice &
Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate (the Association), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as of June 30, 2023, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated March 28,2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the
Association's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Association's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Association's internal control.

A deficiency in Internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that Is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with govemance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identity all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in intemat control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We identified a deficiency in
Internal controls, described In the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2023-
001, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

Molhe ;• New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Ownectlcut ̂  West Virginia ■ Artzorxj • Puerto Rico
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Board of Directors

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on Compilance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Association's consolidated financial
statements are free from material mlsstatement, we performed tests of Its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the consolidated financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The Association's Response to the Finding

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Association's
response to the finding identified In our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. The Association's response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures
applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's
intemai control or on compliance. This report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Association's Intemai control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
Dec6mt)er 19, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each M^Jor Federai Program

We have audited Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services. Inc. and Affiliate's (the Association)
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the Office of Management and
Budget Compliance Supplement \hal could have a direct and material effect on each of the Association's
major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2023. The Association's major federal programs are
identified In the Summary of Auditor's Results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Association complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30,2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Mq/or Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance In accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described In the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of
our report

We are required to be independent of the Association and to meet our other ethical responsibilities In
accordance with relevant epical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Association's compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
Implementation, and maintenance of effective Internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Association's federal programs.

Maine • Hampshire • MoissdchCisetts • Conrwctlait • We^Vlr^nia. • Arizona • Puerto Rico

berrydunn.com



Board of Directors

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompllance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above Is considered material If there is a
substantial likelihood that, Individually or In the aggregate. It would Influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Association's compliance with the requirements
of each of its major federal programs as a whole.

In performing an audit In accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
a test basis, evidence regarding the Association's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary In the
circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Association's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and
report on intemai control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's Intemai control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate witti those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
Intemai control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance which Is required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs as item 2023-002. Our opinion on each major federal program is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Association's
responses to the noncompliance finding identified In our compliance audit described In the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Association's response was not subjected to the other
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.
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Board of Directors

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services. Inc. and Affiliate

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Our consideration of intemai control over compliance was for the limited purpose described In the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in Intemai control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses and significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we did identify certain
deficiencies In internal control over compliance that we consider to be a material weaknesses.

A deficiency in intemai control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompiiance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness In intemai control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in intemai control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompiiance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis;

A significant deficiency in intemai control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in Intemai control over compliance, yet Important
enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance. We consider the deficiencies in intemai
controls over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
items 2023-002, 2023-003, and 2023-004 to be material weaknesses.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemai
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Govemment Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Association's
response to the intemai control over compliance findings identified in our compliance audit described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Association's response was not
subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on intemai control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of intemai control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 28, 2024
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30,2023

Federal Grant/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

Major Programs

United States Department of Health and Human

Services

Pass-through State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Social Services Block Grant

Total Social Service Block Grant

Division of Public Health Services

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

Total Major Programs

Contract/Pass-

Federal Through
AL Identifying

Number Numl^r

93.667

93.667

93.667

93.558

1051526 &

1054065

1051526

1051598 &

1054074

Total Federal
Exoendltures

$  249,366

25,692

213.641

488.699

205.234

693.933

Non-Major Programs

United States Department of Transportation

Pass-through State of New Hampshire
Department of Transportation
Formula Grants for Rural Areas and Tribal Transit
Program 20.509 N/A 275.570

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the schedule.
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Concluded)

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Federal Grant/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

United States Deoartment of Health and Human

Services

Pass-through State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Aging Cluster

Special Programs for the Aging

Title III, Part B Grants for Supportive
Services and Senior Centers

Contract/Pass

Federal -Through

Title III, Part C Nutrition Services

Total Aging Cluster

Division of Public Health Services

Pass-through State of New Hampshire
Bureau of Matemal and Child Health

Promoting Safe and Stable Families

Division for Child, Youth and Families
Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services

Matemal, infant and Early Childhood Home
Visiting Grant

Matemal and Child Health Services

Total Division of Public Health

Services

Total Non-Major Programs

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

AL

Number

93.044

93.044

93.044

93.045

93.556

93.645

93.870

93.994

Identifying
Number

1051598 &

1054074

1051526 &

1054065

1051526

1051598 &

1054074

Total Federal

Expenditures

38,953

8,658
26,292

291.925

365.828

22,615

4,597

154,193

6.039

187.444

828.842

$  1822776

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the schedule.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2023

1. Basis of Presentation

The amount reported on the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the
Schedule) Includes the federal grant activity of Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services,
Inc. and Affiliate (the Association) for the year ended June 30,2023. The information in this Schedule
Is presented in accordance with requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a portion of the operations of the
Association, it Is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets
or cash flows of the Association.

2. Summarv of Significant AccountinQ Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-
through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

The Association has not elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate.

3. Indirect Costs

The Association does not participate in government grants or contracts that provide for specific
indirect cost recovery rates.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Results

Consolidated Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report Issued:
Intemal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(les) identified not considered to t>e

material weaknesses?

Noncompiiance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

intemal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) Identified not considered to be

material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance?

Identification of major programs:

AL Numberfs^

93.558

93.667

Unmodified

yes X no

_X_yes

yes

X ves

yes

none reported

X no

no

X none reported

Unmodified

X ves no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

United States Department of Health and Human Services
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

United States Department of Health and Human Services
Social Service Block Grant

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Audltee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$750,000

yes X no
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPtCE & COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended June 30,2023

Section II. Findings Relating to the Consolidated Financial Statements Which are Required to
be Reported In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Finding Number:

Criteria:

Condition Found:

Cause and Effect:

Recommendation:

Views of a Responsible
Official and Comective

Action Plan:

2023-001

The Association is responsible for designing, Implementing and
maintaining effective internal controls over financial reporting that provide
reasonable assurance that the Internal controls will prevent misstatements
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis, Intentional or
unintentional, from occurring.

As an additional procedure this year, we reviewed user access to the
payroll software,

isiYeaB By not
removing user access on the same day that an employee is terminated, the
Association is vulnerable to the risk of an unauthorized access to the
payroll system. In addition, we noted a large number of current employees
with full access to the software.

There are no formal procedures documented to review the payroll access
rights to determine if the assigned access rights are appropriate. As a
result, there Is potential that an error or misstatement related to payroll may
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

We recommend that management implement a process to review
employee user access to all systems and remove individuals as applicable
during the termination process. We also recommend management re-
evaluate system access rights and assign access to employees based on
only the functions needed to perform job responsibilities.

Management agrees with the finding and the recommendation. See
Corrective Action Plan on page 39.

Section III. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

Finding Number: 2023-002

Information on the

Federal Program: Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Program Name: Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
AL: 93.558

Federal Award Yean Year Ended June 30, 2023
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Specific Requirement:

Condition Found:

Context:

Questioned Costs:

Cause and Effect:

Identification as a

Repeat Finding,
if Applicable:

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Program Name: Social Services Block Grant
AL: 93.667

Federal Award Identification Number: 1051598, 1054074, 1051526,
1054065

Federal Award Year Year Ended June 30, 2023

The cost principles in 2 CFR, Part 200, Subpart E (Cost Principles) are
required fbrthe administration of federal awards of Nonprofrt organizations.

During our audit, we noted the Association had charged the following
expenditure to the grant that were deemed to be unallowable based on the
Cost Prindpies:

-  An increase to the allowance for payment adjustment recorded
as bad debt expense for a total of $372.

During our audit, we noted that Association had charged the following
expenditures to the grant that were deemed to be unallowable with
restrictions. We did not see any further guidance in the grant agreement to
determine these were allowable costs:

-  License and rental fees paid to participate in the State of New
Hampshire Charitable Gaming program of $2,125.

We sampled 40 expense transactions under the Sodal Service Block Grant
and 15 expenses under the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Grant and noted three transactions that were not consist with the Cost

Principles.

$2,497

The Association was unaware of the Allowable Costs and Cost Prindpies
requirements as it relates to expenditures charged to the grant.

N/A

Recommendation:

Views of a Responsible
Official and Corrective

Action Plan:

We recommend the Association implement a process to review all
expenditures that are charged to the grant to verify that are allowable under
the Federal Cost Principles.

Management agrees with the finding and the recommendation. See
Corrective Action Plan on page 39.
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Finding Number:

Information on the

Federal Program:

Specific Requirement:

Condition Found:

Context:

Questioned Costs:

Cause and Effect:

Identification as a

Repeat Finding,
if Applicable:

2023-003

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Transportation
Program Name: Fomiula Grants for Rural Areas and Tribal Transit
Program
AL: 20.609;
Federal Award Identification Number: 04-96-96-964010-2916-072-500575
Federal Award Year: Year Ended June 30, 2023

Required by 2 CFR, Part 200 for federally funded programs, when an
Institution enters Into a covered transaction with an entity or individual, an
Institution must verify that the vendor or employee Is not suspended or
debarred or otherwise excluded from participating in federal programs.
Generally, a covered transaction Is a transaction expected to equal or
exceed $25,000 and be funded with federal dollars. This verification may
be accomplished by checking the System for Award Management (SAM),
formerly the Excluded Parties List System, maintained by the General
Services Administration, collecting a certification from the vendor, or by
adding a clause or condition to the covered transaction.

yrrrs!?-fpfvSZ
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Based on our testing, we noted that of the 6 vendors selected for tested,
while they were checked against the SAM listing, this review was not
performed until after the reached the covered threshold of $25,000.

None.

The Association was unaware of the risk associated with the payments to
vendors leading up to the $25,000 threshold. The Association could identify
a vendor that has been suspended or debarred from a federal program
after they have already reached the $25,000 and been paid under through
the specific grant. The Association could also miss a vendor duo to human
error when reviewing the payments to vendors on a quarterly basis vendors
are only checked once they have been Identified through the manual
process of reviewing for payments to vendors over $25,000.

Yes, 2022-001.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended June 30,2023

Recommendation:

Views of a Responsible
Official and Corrective
Action Plan:

Finding Number:

Information on the

Federal Program:

We recommend the Association Implement a process to corhpare all
vendors paid under federal grants to the SAM at least annually. The
Association should maintain documentation that the comparison has been
performed.

Management agrees with the finding and the recommendation. See
Corrective Action Plan on page 40.

2023-004

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Program Name: Special Programs for the Aging Title III, Part B Grants for
Supportive Services and Senior Centers
AL" 93 044 93 045

Federal Award Identification Number 151598,1054074,1051526,105065
Federal Award Year: Year Ended June 30, 2023

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Program Name: Social Services Block Grant
AL: 93.667

Federal Award Identification Number 1051598, 1054074, 1051526,
1054065

Federal Award Year Year Ended June 30,2023

Specific Requirement:

Condition Found:

The grant agreement requires the Association to submit the following
reporting to the State of New Hampshire's Department of Health and
Human Services that are property supported by Internal documentation:
Monthly reimbursement requests Indicating the number of meals delivered,
Quarterly Program Service Reports, semi-annual Home-Delivered Data
Forms.

During our audit, we noted the Association does not maintain documented
evidence of the reconciliation of the monthly, quarterly or semi-annual
reporting requirements for the Congregate Home-Delivered meals program
provided to the State to their Intemal statistical tracking. We did note the
client included evidence of a review and approval of the billing Invoice,
however, we were unable to reconcile the source documents to the billing
Invoice.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Concluded)

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Context:

Questioned Costs:

Cause and Effect:

Identification as a

Repeat Finding,
if Applicable:

Recommendation:

Views of a Responsible
Official and Corrective

Action Plan:

Based on our testing, we noted on reports the month of June 2023, there
were more meals delivered than the number of meals submitted for
reimbursement. We also noted the reports are generated from a meal count
schedule that Is updated on an on-going basis without distinct cut-off by
month. This does not allow for reconciliation to be performed based on the
reporting period.

None.

The Association was unaware of the requirement to maintain clear
supporting documentation for the required reporting under the grant.

Yes. 2022-002

We recommend the Association implement a process to properly support
the monthly, quarterly and semi-annual reporting requirements that
consists of clear support documentation that shows evidence of a preparer
and reviewer for all components that reconcile to the corresponding
reporting requirement,

Management agrees with the finding and the recommendation. See
Corrective Action Plan on page 40.
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Section I. Findings Relating to the Consolidated Financial Statements Which are Required to
be Reported In Accordance with Qovemment Auditing Standards

None noted.

Section II. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

Finding Number:

Information on the

Federal Program:

Condition Found:

Recommendation:

Status:

Finding Number:

Information on the

Federal Program:

Condition Found:

Recommendation:

2022-001

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Transportation
Program Name: Formula Grants for Rural Areas and Tribal Transit

Program
AL: 20:509

Federal Award Identification Number: 04-96-96-964010-2916-072-500575
Federal Award Year: Year Ended June 30, 2022

sociatedrMg^uria eve

TTiiif "rt

Status:

We recommended the Association implement a process to compare all
vendors meeting the $25,000 threshold funded by any federal program to
the SAM at least annually and when a new vendor is isntered Into the
accounting system. The Association should maintain documentation that
the comparison has been performed.

Partially resolved. (See finding 2023-003)

2022-002

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Program Name: Special Programs for the Aging Title III, Part B Grants for

Supportive Services and Senior Centers
AL" 93 044 93 045

Federal Award Identification Number: 151598,1054074,1051526,105065
Federai Award Year: Year Ended June 30, 2022

During our audit, we noted the Association does not maintain documented
evidence of the reconciliation of the monthly, quarterly or semi-annual
reporting requirements for the Congregate Home-Delivered meals program
provided to the State to their internal statistical tracking.

We recommended the Association implement a process to property support
the monthly, quarterly and semi-annual reporting requirements that
consists of dear support documentation that shows evidence of a preparer
and reviewer for all components that reconcile to the corresponding
reporting requirement.

Partially resolved. (See finding 2023-004)
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Home Heatthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Corrective Action Plan

Year ended June 30, 2023
EIN 02-0464932 & 02-0360640

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services. Inc. respectfully submits the following
corrective action plan for the findings associated with the audit for fiscal year ended June 30,
2022.

Audit period: Year ended June 30, 2023
The findings from the auditor's schedule of findings are discussed below.

Finding 2023-001 Corrective Action Plan

The Accounting Manager will educate the Senior Management Team so that all departments
are aware of this finding and the steps to prevent its recurrence. The Payroll and Accounting
Manager will review and revise current processes to ensure access to payroll software, Paycor
and Payloclty, Is limited to active employees. Terminated employees will be limited to viewing
their personal Information only. Payroll staff will notify Human Resources once the last payroll
check has been processed. Human Resources will be responsible for deactivating employee
In payroll software. Monthly review of access rights with the payroll software will be completed
by Payroll Manager and relayed to Human Resources. Updated procedures will be
documented, and payroll staff will be trained on the new procedures.

Responsible Party: Judy Arellano & Richard Marion
Accounting Manager / Payroll Manager
603-352-2253

Anticipated Completion Date: 4/30/24

Finding 2023-002 Corrective Action Plan

The Accounting Manager will educate the Senior Management Team so that all departments are
aware of this finding and the steps to prevent Its recurrence. The Accounting Manager will work
In conjunction with the AP Staff Accountant and/or Senior Assistant to ensure all expenditures
being charged to grant are allowable based on Federal Cost Principles. Allowance for bad debt
will be eliminated for programs that receive grant funding. Procedures will be revised as
necessary and documented and staff will be trained on the new procedures.

Responsible Party: Judy Arellano
Accounting Manager
603-352-2253

Anticipated Completion Date: 4/30/24

312 Maribofo street 33ArbonMay SVoseFarmRoad
PO Box 564 Charlestown.NH 03603 Suite 110, Box 8

Keene.NH 03431 603-828-3322 Peterborough, NH 03458
603-352-2253 • 800-541-4145 603-532-8353

wwwi1CSservlces.org • infoOhcsservices.org



Finding 2023-003 Corrective Action Plan

The Accounting Manager will educate the Senior Management Team so that all departments are
aware of this finding and the steps to prevent its recurrence. The Accounting Manager will work
in conjunction with the AP Staff Accountant and/or Senior Accountant to ensure all vendors are
added to Provider Trust regardless of dollar amount or program being charged. Prior year finding
procedure was to review quarterly all vendors that reached the threshold of $25,000 would be
added to Provider Trust for monitoring. The revised process will Include all active vendors will be
added to Provider Trust. Procedures will be revised as necessary and documented. Staff will be
trained on new procedure.

Responsible Party: Judy Arellano
Accounting Manager
603-352-2253

Anticipated Completion Date: 4/15/24

Finding 2023-004 Corrective Action Plan

The Accounting Manager will educate the Senior Management Team so that all departments are
aware of this finding and the steps to prevent its recurrence. The Accounting Manager will work
In conjunction with the Grant/Staff Accountant and/or Senior Accountant to ensure that monthly
Meals on Wheels spreadsheet totals reconcile with the meals within the Serv Tracker reporting.
Procedures will be revised as necessary and documented. Staff will be trained on new procedure.

Responsible Party: Judy Arellano
Accounting Manager
603-352-2253

Anticipated Completion Date: 4/15/24
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Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community ServicesA^A at HCS, Inc.

2022/2023 Board of Directors

Chair:

David Therrien

Vice Chair:

Virginia Jordan

Treasurer:

Eric Home

Secretary:

Julie Green

Directors:

Michael Chelstowski

Mary Ann Davis

Julie Greenwood

Ann Heffemon

Donald Mazanowski, M.D.

Willian Pearson

Judy Sadosld

David Stinson

Julie Tewksbury

Andrew Tremblay, M.D.

Ex Ofllcios:

Maura McQueeney, CEO

Dawn Michelizzi, CFO
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Keene,NH 03431 603-828-3322 Peterborough, NH 03458
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Transportation at HCS

Key Personnel

April 2023

Name Job Title PTE Salary %Paid

from this

Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Charles Pratt Transportation Manager Yes 57,783 75% $43,337

Michael Galea Senior StafT Accountant Yes 65,000 10% $6,500

total $122,783 $49,837



CHARLES PRATT
SKILLS
Hands on, critical thinker with a proven track record of transforming underperforming businesses and
teams as an effective leader, capable of working dosely with diverse groups of people to achieve
superior results In manufacturing operations. Experienced in multiple aspects of management and
human resource responsibilities indudlng vetting, interviewing and hiring of new employees as well
as payroll management.

EXPERIENCE

Program Manager • Transportation Pit^ram, VNA at HCS • Keene, NH • September 2019 - Present
Responsible for the daily operations of agency transportation programs, indudlng the City Express public
transportation and paratransit services, Friendly Bus door to door service for seniors and Medical Express
service. Responsible for adherence to all Department of Transportation regulation and reporting, program
budgeting, and overseeing driver and dispatch staff. Attend community meetings and forums to
coordinate with other transportation entitles and the public related to transportation Issues.

SUPERVISOR • CONTINENTAl. CABLE • HINSDALE, NH • JANUARY 2019 - JUNE 2019
Responsible for On Time Delivery, Scheduling of Machines & Employees In the Assembly area & In the
Machine shop. Accurate reporting & documentation of steps to ensure Quality Control measurements
during each step of assembling order, to adhere to government regulations for defense systems.
Providing department meetings as needed, and weekly Management reviews.

PLANT MANAGER • FORTRESS PACKAGING • FAIRFIELD, CA • OCTOBER 2016 -OCTOBER 2018
Instrumental In the start-up of a new production company. Managing the day to day operations, while
Instructing and monitoring safety quality and on time performance. Recorded 2 years without Injury or
returned sale while training an entirety new, unexperienced workforce to uphold a high level of
standards In support of perfect production quality. Experience loading and unloading trucks as well as
conducting facility tours with new potential accounts and performing routine, hands on maintenance of
new equipment.

PLANT MANAGER • MULTICELL PACKAGING • KUT2T0WN PA 19530 • OaOBER 2010 - MARCH 2015
Charged with changing the climate and culture of the facility. Devetoped and implemented strategies to
transform poorly performing production facility Into a profitable one. Reduced set-up times, worked
closely with vendors to reduce Inventory of raw materials, increasing profitability. Cross trained
employees resulting in a greater flexibility In the workforce.

PLANT SUPERINTENDENT • INNERPAC NE • KEENE NH 03446 • SEPTEMBER1997 - OCTOBER 2010
Responsible for the day to day operations of the manufacturing of the plant Did scheduling of
machinery, personnel and ordering of raw materials. Oversaw the staff, participated In dally meetings
with the General Manager and customer service. Conducted weekly updates with floor personnel.
Coordinated with shipping on Incoming and outgoing shipments. Learned how to run and setup all
machines.

EDUCATION
DIPLOMA • JUNE 1982 • KEENE HIGH SCHOOL


